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1

P R O C E E D I N G S

2

Madison County Board of Adjustment Quasi-judicial Public

3

Hearing,

4
5

May 15, 2019,
(WHEREUPON, due to the room acoustics and the

6

layout of the courtroom, the following

7

testimony may contain unclear or

8

unintelligible speech that was transcribed as

9

inaudible)

10

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

Good evening.

This is the

11

continuation of the regular Madison County

12

Board of Adjustment meeting.

13

quasi-judicial hearing.

14

am the Chair of the Board of Adjustment.

15

other board members are Darlyne Rhinehart,

16

Mike Tuziw, Ernest Ramsey, Robert Briggs.

17

have two members that have recused

18

themselves, those are Rick Molland and Sherry

19

Frisbee who are not here tonight.

20

secretary is Jeff Hyder.

21

John, and I'll -- Yunesup (phonetic), thank

22

you.

This is a

I'm Karen Kiehna, I

Our

The bailiff is

23

It is -- this is much like a court

24

proceeding with the Board of Adjustment

25

serving as the role of the judge.
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1

respect this hearing as if you were in court.

2

If circumstances require, the deputy will

3

bring the hearing into order.

4

At this point, we're ready to move

5

forward with your next --

6

MR. GULDEN:

7

Thank you, Madam Chair.

We

call Donald Read.

8
9

Yes.

DONALD READ, being first duly identified
and sworn was examined and testified as follows:

10

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

11

Will you state your name for the

court reporter?

12

THE WITNESS:

13

D I R E C T

14

Q.

15

It's Donald Read.

E X A M I N A T I O N

BY MR. GULDEN:

Mr. Read, you can have a seat now.

Can you spell your

last name for Madam Court Reporter?

16

A.

R-e-a-d.

17

Q.

Mr. Read, tell us a little bit about your education and

18
19

training.
A.

Graduated from Texas A&M University back in 1986.

I've

20

worked as a real estate appraiser since 2000 in Western

21

North Carolina, hold an MAI designation from the

22

Appraisal Institute.

23

Q.

24
25

And tell us a little bit about what you can do with
your MAI designation.

A.

Appraise a variety of properties, simple, complex,
Bridges Court Reporting
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1

single-family residential, commercial.

2

Q.

You've been doing that since 2000?

3

A.

That's correct.

4

Q.

How long have you been doing it in and around the

5

Western North Carolina area?

6

A.

Since 2000.

7

Q.

Have you been engaged by a group in opposition to an

8

asphalt plant to conduct a, or to draft an expert

9

report related to the proposed asphalt plant?

10

A.

Yes.

11

Q.

Do you know where the proposed asphalt plant is?

12

A.

Yes.

13

Q.

Give me a list of some of your clientele that you've

14
15

done previous appraisals for.
A.

16
17

Q.

And -- go ahead.

And regional, do they rely on your

opinions when you give them as far as your appraisals?
A.

20

Yes.
MR. GULDEN:

We'd ask that he be admitted as a --

21

as a real estate appraiser, no

22

qualifications, no residential, just an

23

unlimited real estate appraiser.

24
25

A lot

of local banks, regional banks.

18
19

Just various attorneys, individuals, investors.

Q.

So again, I asked you if you did a report -- tell us
some of the methods you used in conducting your or
Bridges Court Reporting
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2

preparing your expert report?
A.

Looked at the neighborhood and the area for in and

3

around Marshall and this side of Madison County and

4

then investigated the other locations in and around

5

Western North Carolina that have rock quarries and

6

processing plants for asphalt and concrete.

7

Q.

8
9

Did you -- did you look at, rely upon any information
that was given to you by external sources?

A.

Yes.

I considered the information -- well, I was

10

contacted to do an appraisal.

You said you already had

11

a market analysis completed.

12

you give me all the raw data, the information and talk

13

to Mr. Bruggeman.

14

it's Bruggeman.

I said I could look at if

I've never meet him, but I believe

15

Q.

That's correct.

16

A.

Then I could look at that and possibly use it.

I

17

agreed with the formatting and the process that he

18

took, actually went in a little more detail than

19

typically we do for an appraisal market analysis.

20

Q.

Do you recall what processes he took that typically you

21

went over in detail and if you do recall it, can you

22

explain it to the board?

23

A.

Yeah, I looked at, you got to do two things.

You got

24

to look at the median neighborhood so I started looking

25

at neighborhoods.

You want to see, well, how far away
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can you get before you think there's not going to be or

2

there will be any kind of impacts and that radius is

3

one mile is where I felt was important and also you

4

have to have data so that you can get some kind of

5

reliability out of it and that's what he did.

6

one-mile radius at various plants around Western North

7

Carolina and then he compared it to the zip code level

8

which is still your greater community.

9

Q.

He did a

And when you're talking about a one-mile radius again,

10

I'm bad with math and I keep saying that, but a one-

11

mile radius actually gives you a two-mile --

12

A.

Circle.

13

Q.

-- circle, right?

And so if you're looking at what

14

we've marked here as Exhibit, I'm going to say 2, and

15

you're talking about the proposed asphalt plant, you're

16

just taking a radius of going out a mile and then

17

drawing a big circle around and that would give you

18

just a two-mile circle?

19

information you use?

20

A.

Yeah, your math says a two-mile radius which would be a

21

four-mile circle.

22

at and considered.

23

Q.

Is that the kind of

Oh, yes.

So the inner circle is what I looked

I apologize.

Thank you for my correction.

24

So from here one mile out -- I was just looking at two,

25

I didn't even look past that.

So one mile out is the
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one-mile radius.

2

A.

Correct.

3

Q.

You looked at properties in that radius at how many

4

plants?

5

A.

Five.

6

Q.

And you --

7

MR. SNEED:

8

I'm sorry, I didn't understand the

question, how many what?

9

MR. GULDEN:

How many plants, how many asphalt

10

plants did he look at this one-mile radius or

11

a two-mile circle, a one-mile radius.

12

A.

Five additional plants.

13

Q.

Do you recall which ones they were?

14

A.

There was the one on the Goldview Road in Weaverville.

15

There's one just west of Black Mountain.

16

just on Smokey Park Highway in Enka, near Enka Lake.

17

There's another one over on Allens Creek over in

18

Waynesville and then down off of Howard Gap and then it

19

was near where Clear Creek crosses with Howard Gap Road

20

and Interstate 26 in Hendersonville.

21

Q.

And in looking at all of that, tell the board what you

22

were looking for.

23

opinion about property values?

24
25

A.

There's one

What's important to you to give an

Well, when you're looking at the property value you're
looking at neighborhoods that are most similar.
Bridges Court Reporting
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somebody's going to buy a house in a neighborhood

2

they're going to shop in similar neighborhoods and

3

similar price points.

4

work, employment, shopping, entertainment.

5

Q.

Also, how close they are to

And when you're looking at that, what does it kind of

6

tell you?

7

what kind of information?

8

A.

9

Part of it's the demand for the neighborhood, how many
-- how many people are shopping, what's the demand, are

10
11

What are you trying to gather from that,

prices trending upward or downward.
Q.

And did you do that for those five sites and did you

12

come up with a report and an opinion based upon your

13

research as to how this proposed asphalt plant may

14

affect the property value around it?

15

A.

Yes.

I looked at all five sites with a one-mile

16

radius, looked at that, for the one-mile circle and the

17

corresponding zip code for each plant over a 15-year

18

period up to the end of 2018.

19

Q.

And why is it important to you, why was it important to

20

you to look at the zip code and compare it to this one-

21

mile radius circle as opposed to just looking at, let's

22

say, a one-mile radius circle and a five-mile circle?

23

Why is the zip code more important to you?

24
25

A.

It's a little bigger data set and so it's -- and it's a
larger -- larger section of the community to set -Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839
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because you have to look at -- you want to look at

2

what's next to the plant, what's there, what's already

3

in the neighborhood and then how is that neighborhood

4

performing compared to the overall market.

5

going with a slightly larger, like doing the zip code,

6

you get a little more -- you're getting impacted by

7

more things going on in the community and what's

8

happening in the community from the price point over

9

the time.

10

Q.

And by

And so is it your -- do you have your -- I'm going to

11

hand up to you what I've marked as Opposition Exhibit

12

8.

13

(WHEREUPON, Opposition Exhibit Number 8 was marked

14

for identification and passed to the witness

15

for review)

16

Q.

Do you have a copy of that?

17

A.

Yes, sir.

18

Q.

And I'm going to hand it to you and look at this and

19

see if that accurately represents a copy of the report

20

that you have in front of you.

21

A.

Yes, sir.

22

Q.

And what is that report if you can tell the board?

23

A.

It's a market analysis for the impact that the

24

potential asphalt plant would have or could have on the

25

local neighborhood and on that one-mile circle.
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Q.

And you're going to have to apologize, I'm a little

2

hard of hearing and I completely missed your answer

3

while my back was turned.

4

again to the board what you just said.

5

A.

And so if you can explain

We could do a market analysis on what the potential

6

impact could be of an asphalt plant within or on the

7

single-family residences that are within one mile of an

8

asphalt plant.

9

Q.

And you were looking at that to determine how well

10

those properties performed in regard or in relationship

11

to the broader community in general?

12

A.

Correct.

13

Q.

All right.

And I want to turn your attention to page 9

14

of your report.

15

analysis and your conclusion.

16

what that chart represents?

17

A.

It talks a little bit about your
Can you tell the board

What that chart -- to me on page 9 I've got the market

18

analysis for the subject site because it's kind of a

19

perfect situation right now.

20

rock quarry, we have commercial, there's retail,

21

there's shopping, there's residential properties.

22

does the single-family residential properties perform

23

over the last 15 years in the subject neighborhood

24

within that one-mile radius.

25

they've performed equal to everything else in the zip

What we have, we have a

How

And over the 15 years
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1

code.

2

exactly, almost identical rate.

3

it's 0.79 percent down over 15 years compared to the

4

entire so there's been no -- that's so small you can't

5

really -- you can't say there's any impact at all

6

currently.

7

Q.

The median sales prices has increased at the
On there it's only --

And what you're telling the board based on that chart

8

is that the surrounding property increases or follows

9

the same market increase that the balance of the zip

10

code would follow?

11

A.

Correct.

12

Q.

Did you look at -- under those same kind of conditions,

13

did you look at those five other plants and were you

14

able to determine if those surrounding neighborhoods to

15

an asphalt plant follow along with the same market

16

trends?

17

A.

Yes.

That's where going through the report --

18

Q.

Yeah, we can go through the report and look at page 10.

19

A.

On page 10 I've got the Weaverville plant which is on

20

Goldburger Road, I believe it's Goldbug, Goldberg,

21

Goldbug?

22

over 15 years so a little less than one percent per

23

year over 15, but that's still down.

24

it's still at one percent or one-mile radius.

25

Q.

And it is -- it's showing 12.69 percent down

It's negative,

And so in grade school terms, what does that mean?
Bridges Court Reporting
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2

Tell us what that means.
A.

Well, it kind of depends on your property value.

I

3

mean, coming back to the subject neighborhood current

4

in the Asheville MLS there were 78 properties that had

5

sold.

6

here, I believe it was 201,000.

7

take 12 percent of 201,000, that's $24,000 loss.

8

Q.

9

They -- the average was, I believe, and it's in
So you know, if you

And, in essence, when you're talking about your chart
and your conclusions and analysis that you came up with

10

on page 10, are you saying, you're telling this board,

11

and you can correct me if I'm wrong, but are you

12

telling this board that a one-mile radius, the two-mile

13

circle around that asphalt plant hasn't increased or

14

hasn't followed the same market trend that the balance

15

of the community has?

16

A.

That is correct.

17

Q.

Look at page 11, which is the Enka plant.

18

Enka plant in Asheville, I'm assuming?

19

A.

That's correct.

20

Q.

All right.

21
22

Tell the board what analysis and

conclusions you found based upon that asphalt plant.
A.

In that asphalt plant, the conclusion based on 15 years

23

is 4.98 percent down.

24

15 years.

25

That's the

Q.

So basically, five percent over

So, and again, that is the property in and around that
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asphalt plant in a two-mile circle appreciates at five

2

percent slower rate than the balance of that zip code?

3

A.

That is correct.

4

Q.

And if you look at page 12, that's the Hendersonville

5

plant.

6

A.

Correct.

7

Q.

On Hendersonville Road.

8
9

analysis and conclusions when you looked at that plant.
A.

10
11

That one has underperformed the market by 23.96 percent
over 15 years.

Q.

12
13

Tell the board about your

And again, in just laymen's terms, what are you telling
the board as it relates to that plant?

A.

14

If you take that, compare it to the subject location,
$200,000 that would be $48,000 less over 15 years.

15

Q.

In --

16

A.

Property value.

17

Q.

-- property values.

18

Now, did you get a chance to look

at Ms. Carmichael's appraisal report?

19

A.

Yes, I did.

20

Q.

And she seemed to indicate that the properties within a

21

half mile around the Hendersonville asphalt plant, in

22

fact, outperformed other property in that area.

23

agree with that opinion?

24

A.

No, I do not.

25

Q.

And why don't you agree with that opinion?
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A.

Well, looking through it and one of the main reasons I

2

feel like you have, at least in this situation to look

3

at, to go up to a mile radius, there are so few sales

4

within a half mile each year that if you have one

5

property that's at the high end of the price range and

6

one property on the low end of the price range, you're

7

not going to be able to see a trend.

8

trend even over 15 years the value -- it will look like

9

the value's going up and down a lot every year and if

10

you do it over a very short time period like one year

11

that was in the back of their -- you really don't know,

12

you would have to look at each individual property.

13

Q.

If you take that

And you did see her amended report that she did

14

pursuant to the board, one of the board's questions,

15

which showed around all of the asphalt plants that

16

property within one mile of all of those plants,

17

woefully underperformed when compared to property

18

within five miles, did you see that?

19

A.

No, I did not.

20

Q.

Would you agree with that?

21

A.

Well, that's, I mean, analysis that I looked at,

22

property that is one mile or less from a plant

23

underperforms the market.

24
25

Q.

All right.

And so if we turn to page 13 tell the board

a little bit about your conclusions and analysis as it
Bridges Court Reporting
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2

relates to that plant.
A.

3
4

At Black Mountain, Black Mountain plant is located off
of Highway 70, 13.22 percent off of 15 years.

Q.

And the same thing, those properties within that two-

5

mile circle underperformed by that percentage compared

6

to properties in general in that zip code around Black

7

Mountain?

8

A.

Correct.

9

Q.

You also looked at on page 14, the Waynesville plant,

10

tell the board a little bit about your analysis and

11

conclusions there.

12

A.

Waynesville's located off of -- it's on the west side

13

of town just south on Allens Creek.

14

23.9 percent below the market compared to the

15

Waynesville zip code on the west side of Waynesville.

16

Q.

All right.

And that plant was

And again, in just laymen's terms, what

17

does that reduction actually mean?

18

to?

What does it amount

19

A.

Close to $48,000 every 15 years for a $200,000 house.

20

Q.

Did you also look at a asphalt plant in Avery County?

21

A.

Correct.

The information from Avery County is based on

22

a report that was performed related to the tax

23

assessments after --

24

MR. SNEED:

25

A.

I object to using tax assessments.

Did you have a question?
Bridges Court Reporting
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MR. SNEED:

I object to using tax assessments.

2

You know tax assessments are not appropriate

3

places for value --

4

MR. GULDEN:

Well --

5

THE WITNESS:

In the state of North Carolina all

6

property must be taxed and the tax assessment

7

must be created based on market value of the

8

property.

9

MR. SNEED:

That's state law for appraisal.

But there are plenty of cases that say

10

that tax values are not appropriate and I

11

object.

12

MR. GULDEN:

And -- and the objection he can

13

cross-examine on the tax value but if he in

14

his report used as a basis the tax value,

15

that's not objectionable at all.

16

talking about the actual value of the

17

property, he's just talking about what the

18

assessed value was.

19

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

He's not

But it is different than what

20

we've been using as a benchmark through this

21

entire process.

22

MR. GULDEN:

23

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

24
25

That is correct.
For it to be used as

comparative, so I'm going to sustain.
Q.

The -- based upon the information that you gathered
Bridges Court Reporting
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related to the five other plants, do you have an

2

opinion satisfactory to yourself as how this proposed

3

asphalt plant would affect the value of the property

4

within a one-mile radius around it?

5

A.

I think it probably would -- probably affect the

6

property more closely to the plant in Waynesville

7

and/or Hendersonville.

8

would be at the higher end of damages because when you

9

get into a more rural location, you have more options

10

and more choices to go buy property somewhere else or

11

live somewhere else that's still only a few minutes

12

down the road.

13

very similar to Madison County.

14

you know, Smokey Park Highway out by Enka Lake.

15

that situation when you look at Ms. Carmichael's

16

report, she used the control subject about four miles

17

west of there which you get over in Candler and they

18

had not seen the property value appreciation that they

19

have in West Asheville and the Enka plant has had a lot

20

of activity, increased property values because of the

21

increase in West Asheville.

22

affordable.

23

school and more commercial properties right outside of

24

this road so there's been a lot more influx into the

25

east side of that market than the west side of the

It should be, I believe it

The demographics of Haywood County are
The lowest damage was,
In

It's made Enka look more

They built a new school, a new charter
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2

market.
Q.

And based upon that and the, you talked about the

3

control site that she used, what's your opinion as to

4

how this asphalt plant if constructed would affect the

5

property within a one-mile radius around it?

6

A.

Similar to the five Asheville plants study.

Just

7

throwing out the one, just the average -- the average

8

including -- I've got it here.

9

damage is 15.75 percent over 15 years and that includes

I mean, the average

10

the 4.98 from the Enka location.

11

really even Black Mountain and Weaverville so you're

12

looking at 15 to 24 percent, so roughly around 20

13

percent over 15 years.

14

Q.

The most similar are

So the board is tasked with certain standards.

One of

15

them is that the use will not be injurious to property

16

or public improvements in the neighborhood.

17

have an opinion as to whether this asphalt plant will

18

be injurious to the property surrounding it?

Do you

19

A.

I believe it will be to the property values, yes.

20

Q.

And that opinion that you have it will be injurious is

21

stated in your report to be an amount similar to which

22

-- which other asphalt plant?

23

A.

I didn't draw a conclusion in there.

I did, I listed

24

the lowest damage which is the $10,000 and the highest

25

is 48,000 based on the average property value today.
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Q.

And so then what would be your opinion as to the amount

2

of damage that may be suffered by the surrounding

3

property once the asphalt plant is constructed?

4

A.

It would be about 20 percent of what's out there in the

5

market right now.

6

the 200.

7

Q.

Okay.

8
9
10

MR. GULDEN:

Those would be my questions.

C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N
Q.

11
12

So over time, so about $40,000 on

BY MR. SNEED:

Mr. Reed, have you seen the site?

Have you been on the

site?
A.

13

I have not been on the property.

I've looked at it

from -- from the road and from above.

14

Q.

From above?

15

A.

It's hilly around here, so just looking down.

16

Q.

You had some comments about Candler and I didn't

17

understand what you said about the site that Ms.

18

Carmichael picked four miles east or west.

19

A.

I believe it was west.

20

Q.

All right.

And you said something about that

21

neighborhood.

22

neighborhood?

23

A.

What are you saying about that

Well, when you look at one, three and five, I believe

24

she had one -- one two five-mile circles around that

25

site and then she did the same thing out west.
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go that far west Candler did not have -- and you go

2

that far east to see what the impacts are on that Enka

3

Lake site, you get on one side of it you have property

4

values going up very rapidly in West Asheville and you

5

go west out of Candler and you have properties going up

6

a lot slower.

7

overlapping circles and you're in the middle, you're

8

going to get a blimp of that.

9

Q.

10

And so you would say if you have

So you're telling me that out west in Candler the
prices don't go up as West Asheville?

11

A.

They have not.

12

Q.

So there's a difference in the acceleration of the

13

prices in Candler where they don't have an asphalt

14

plant and there's a higher acceleration of prices in

15

West Asheville that cause it to become a highlight?

16

A.

Both of them are not near an asphalt plant.

17

Q.

Right.

But they're different neighborhoods with

18

different characteristics and, I think, you said you

19

wanted to look at neighborhoods most similar.

20

A.

Correct.

21

Q.

But then you compared it against the whole zip code.

22

A.

Because you have to have a control that is stable and

23

includes an entire community.

24

Q.

But --

25

A.

So it's going out to a larger community, not a
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2

different community.
Q.

But the zip code of 28806 includes Candler, includes

3

West Asheville.

It includes all sorts of different

4

places that have different price trends because they

5

are different circumstances with each one of those

6

neighborhoods.

7

A.

28806 does not include Enka or Candler.

8

Q.

Oh.

9

A.

28715, I believe, is Candler.

10

Q.

28715, okay.

11

A.

There are separate zip codes.

12

Q.

But they -- the point is they contain different

13

neighborhoods with different characteristics, like the

14

school you mentioned and you have to look, as you said

15

looking at neighborhoods most similar.

16

A.

Correct.

17

Q.

But you look at the whole zip code when you just

18

testified that that zip code had different

19

neighborhoods in it.

20

A.

21
22

Each property is contained within that zip code.

The

plant is within that zip code.
Q.

But the properties, you looked at the trend of the

23

property values and you just admitted that that trend

24

in property values in Candler is not as fast as it is

25

in West Asheville.
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A.

Correct.

But that has nothing --

2

Q.

There are places throughout the entire zip code where

3

price acceleration varies because the characteristics

4

of that particular neighborhood.

5

A.

They do there because of the characteristics of a

6

particular neighborhood and you're comparing different

7

zip codes with very different characteristics.

8

look at the Enka plant, you're talking about the

9

properties within Enka, within that community, within

10
11

If you

that zip code, not different zip codes.
Q.

But you're not looking at the whole zip code, you're

12

looking at properties that are similar.

13

took on this assignment you got this study that had

14

been done areas around asphalt plant versus the entire

15

zip code, didn't you?

16

A.

And when you

I looked at all the data and I looked at it and I need

17

to compare it to a larger market than that one mile or

18

the two mile.

19

that would work.

20

Q.

21

I could have done five-mile circles,

But you testified that you need to look at
neighborhoods most similar.

22

A.

Correct.

23

Q.

Now, neighborhoods in Waynesville, that zip code is

24
25

And --

pretty large.
A.

Correct, as it is here.
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Q.

And in Waynesville, you've got all those million dollar

2

houses on the mountain just south of Candler.

3

neighborhood is different from the rural neighborhood

4

where the asphalt plant is, isn't that right?

5

A.

6
7

That

There is a high-end gated community up that road
overlooking it.

Q.

Right.

And there's some high-end gated communities out

8

on the bypass on -- the 1923 going towards Balsam.

9

fact, there are a number of high-end neighborhoods in

10

Waynesville where the price acceleration had been

11

different than the price acceleration of a rural

12

neighborhood that you looked at next to the asphalt

13

plant, aren't there?

In

14

A.

I don't know which neighborhood you're talking about.

15

Q.

Well, you've got all those golf courses out there on

16

the right as you're going towards Sylva.

17

that zip code, isn't it?

18

A.

19

That's in

There are -- there are high-end community, gated
communities here in the zip code.

20

Q.

And did you separate out the price acceleration there?

21

A.

No, I did not.

22

Q.

So you've not been to the site, you've concluded that

23

quarry has not affected property values in Madison

24

County, is that correct?

25

A.

I have been to the site.

I have not -- I was not
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allowed on the property to look at it.

2

Q.

That's my question.

3

A.

I have been to the gate, I've driven around it and I've

4

looked down at the proposed site from adjoining

5

properties.

6

the site and I've been on the public road access to the

7

site.

So I have seen the site and I've driven by

8

Q.

To the gate there on the bypass?

9

A.

Correct.

10

Q.

But you did not go down in the site?

11

A.

I was not invited in.

12

Q.

Now, the quarry has not adversely affected property

13

values, that's your opinion, right?

14

A.

That is correct.

15

Q.

So what would be the reason that a asphalt plant

16

located 100 feet down inside the quarry would have any

17

adverse effect on properties that the quarry already

18

didn't have?

19

A.

Odor and operation.

Operation of paving facilities

20

often run 24 hours a day, they can run on weekends,

21

they can run at night.

22

paved at night.

23

only operations.

24

comparable sites and they all have rock quarries and

25

that's why it was so important to me to look at what's

A lot of road projects are

Rock quarries are typically daytime
That's why I wanted to look at the
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going on today here, Madison County, what's going on in

2

the one-mile circle, what's going on in the zip code,

3

for the whole community.

4

Q.

Did you --

5

A.

With a rock quarry.

6

Q.

-- personally inspect the Waynesville plant?

7

A.

In the same way, from the street I've seen it.

8

I went

to all of them.

9

Q.

It's right next to the street.

10

A.

Right.

11

Q.

Right next to the street.

12

A.

Yeah.

13

Q.

And then there's a huge quarry behind it?

14

A.

Correct.

15

Q.

And did you inspect the Rogers plant, 2700 Asheville

16
17

Highway in Hendersonville?
A.

18

It's not -- I'm not talking about the Asheville Highway
one, right.

Are we talking Howard Gap, I believe?

19

Q.

Oh, you didn't inspect the 2700?

20

A.

No.

21

Q.

Okay.

22

Did you inspect the two of them that are down on

Clear Creek Road?

23

A.

Correct.

24

Q.

There are two right side-by-side.

25

A.

There's right, rock quarry, asphalt plant, cement
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mixing plant.

2

Q.

All right next to the road?

3

A.

Right.

4

Q.

The ones that you compared that you inspected were

5

right next to the road and then you say and opined that

6

a rock -- that a asphalt plant stuck half a mile down

7

in a rock quarry --

8

MR. GULDEN:

9

Well, objection to his classification

of it being a half mile down in a rock

10

quarry.

11

MR. SNEED:

12

Well, all right, quarter mile,

whatever it is.

It's way down.

13

Q.

You see why --

14

A.

I also inspected the one in Weaverville which is back

15

in the corner and I inspected -- and I've been in the

16

interior on that property and I inspected the one at

17

Enka Lake and I've been in the interior on that

18

property.

19

Q.

All right.

Let's talk about the one on Goldview Road.

20

You drive up the road, nice rural community, boom,

21

right there on -- right in front of the highway you see

22

right down into the asphalt plant, right?

23

talking about Enka Lake.

24

plant.

25

quarry, isn't that right?

Now, it's

It is down in an asphalt

I mean, the asphalt plant is down in the
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A.

2

I wouldn't really call it down in the quarry; it's
partly down.

It's below the housing nearby, yes.

3

Q.

Well, but it's located inside the quarry?

4

A.

Correct.

5

Q.

And less than a half mile from there Biltmore Farms

6

developed a very high-end neighborhood selling lots for

7

$500,000 and --

8

MR. GULDEN:

9

the prices of those houses are.
Q.

12
13

That calls for

speculation with no foundation, saying what

10
11

Well, objection.

Do you know what the prices are generally in Biltmore
Lake?

A.

When they started developing that prices were two,

14

three, 400,000 for the home, significantly less than

15

Biltmore Park which was the same developer, same

16

property owner and the same contractors.

17

Q.

18

But the prices of lots are basically gone way up,
haven't they?

19

A.

They have gone up.

20

Q.

At Biltmore Lake?

21

A.

Correct.

22

Q.

And they're selling lots for $500,000 a half a mile

23
24
25

away from that quarry?
A.

I don't know what recent lots sell for at Biltmore
Lake.
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Q.

Have you never the price list?

2

A.

Oh, the price list is not a closed contract.

3

Q.

That's true.

4

MR. TUZIW:

I've got a question for you.

Just so

5

I'm clear in my mind, you don't want to count

6

the high-dollar homes in Waynesville area but

7

you're pointing out the value of these high-

8

dollar homes in this plant?

9

MR. SNEED:

No, sir.

What I'm saying is that he

10

says you got to look at similar neighborhoods

11

and when you look at the zip code you're not

12

looking at a similar neighborhood, you're

13

looking at the entire thing including all the

14

million-dollar houses.

15

MR. TUZIW:

You're looking at all the

16

neighborhoods in the vicinity, the high-

17

dollar homes and the lower-end homes too.

18

MR. SNEED:

Yes, we are.

19

MR. TUZIW:

Okay.

20

MR. SNEED:

But he said those --

21

MR. TUZIW:

So you're criticizing him about the

22

So --

high-dollar homes in Waynesville area.

23

MR. SNEED:

I'm criticizing --

24

MR. TUZIW:

Sounds to me like you're criticizing

25

the fact that he's got those in his numbers
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but now you're talking about wanting to prove

2

your point using the high-dollar homes in

3

this other vicinity.

4

confused.

I'm just kind of

5

MR. SNEED:

Well --

6

MR. TUZIW:

Use the high-dollar homes or we're not

7

using high-dollar homes.

I want comparison

8

of the numbers, I want something I can look

9

at apples to apples.

Either we're using the

10

same thing in one and the other or we're not

11

using either one of them.

12

both.

13

MR. SNEED:

But we can't have

No, what I'm saying is that if the

14

area you look at has to be comparable.

So

15

around the Enka plant within a half a mile

16

you got some of these high-dollar homes.

17

got to go find another neighborhood that's

18

like that to see if this asphalt plant here

19

makes a difference as opposed to there.

20

when you look at the whole zip code it

21

doesn't tell you what a similar neighborhood

22

would be like.

23

-- he's testifying that if you never look at

24

-- his exact words, you need to find looking

25

at neighborhoods most similar.

You

But

So if you had to look at the
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think that neighborhood over there by

2

Weaverville, is semi-rural.

3

kind of places and different sorts of houses

4

and there are not a lot of really expensive

5

houses --

6

MR. TUZIW:

It's got farm

Now you're bringing Weaverville into

7

it.

First it was Waynesville, now it's Enka

8

and you want to bring Weaverville.

9

MR. SNEED:

I'm trying to get you to --

10

MR. TUZIW:

Are you telling me that there are no

11

high-dollar homes within that same circle

12

around Waynesville?

13

MR. SNEED:

I'm telling you that there might be

14

some and you need to go look in other rural

15

areas like that.

16

MR. TUZIW:

So that's why we use a mean.

We use

17

the low-end homes and we use the high-end

18

homes to find out a happy medium is.

19
20

MR. SNEED:

Means (audience member coughing) half

above and half below.

21

MR. TUZIW:

Correct.

22

THE WITNESS:

That would be a median.

23

half above, half below.

24

average.

25

MR. SNEED:

The mean is the

The mean's average, okay.
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MR. TUZIW:

Thank you.

2

MR. SNEED:

I'm saying he testified that you need

3

to look at similar neighborhoods.

4

talking about similar neighborhoods, the

5

special features of neighborhoods in Candler

6

and other places and to make a comparison you

7

need to go to a neighborhood that's similar

8

that doesn't have an asphalt plant.

9

MR. TUZIW:

10

He's

Well, you'll never find a neighborhood

that's similar; every one is unique.

11

MR. SNEED:

12

BY MR. SNEED:

13

Q.

Well, let me ask him that then.

You have typically looked in your appraising business

14

at separate neighborhoods that were similar to other

15

neighborhoods, hadn't you?

16

A.

It depends on the property type and the price point and

17

whether you're doing the individual property or you're

18

looking at an entire community trying to establish a

19

trend.

20

may go to, we'll use your Biltmore Lake.

21

Biltmore Lake, you're inside one community you're

22

looking at dozens of homes, the garage is on the left,

23

the garage is on the right, they were all 12 years old.

24

So you're -- you can get very similar or typical of

25

Western North Carolina and most of where we live, you

Because if you look at individual homes and you
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can go down the street and you have a single-wide and

2

then you have a 10-year-old house and then somebody

3

lives at the end of the road on 40 acres with a custom

4

home or an old farm that's here for 100 years.

5

Q.

All right.

But you do agree that prices in West

6

Asheville have accelerated faster than prices in

7

Candler?

8

A.

9
10

Yes, which is what has -- why it shows the less impact
around Enka Lake.

Q.

Enka Lake's not in West Asheville, is it?

11

MR. TUZIW:

Neither are we.

12

A.

It is not.

13

Q.

So are there other areas in Buncombe County with prices

14
15

that accelerate faster than they have in Enka Lake?
A.

Most of the -- the most rapidly accelerating prices

16

have been in what we consider walkable neighborhoods.

17

So the West Asheville, very close to towns, downtown

18

Waynesville, even downtown, you know, little areas,

19

Weaverville.

20

most popular.

21

things like the Black Mountain.

22

Q.

23

You got to get in close.

That's been the

Everything -- looked at more rural

So depending on the neighborhood, the value trends
vary?

24

A.

To a point.

25

Q.

Some are more accelerant, some are slower?
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A.

Correct.

2

Q.

Now, you criticized Ms. Carmichael because she only

3

looked at one year when she found that the values were

4

higher closer to the quarry on Asheville Highway than

5

they were further away from the quarry because she only

6

did that for one year?

7

A.

I wasn't provided with the individual sales.

I don't

8

know if she analyzed the individual houses in that

9

sample or not.

It looks like it's a -- they're bulked

10

together and the sample size is so small and one year

11

it just doesn't, you know -- I would not do it that

12

way.

13

Q.

14

Are you familiar with the neighborhoods around that
plant?

15

A.

Which plant?

16

Q.

2700 Asheville Highway.

17

A.

The Asheville Highway, the Hendersonville?

18

Q.

Yeah.

19

A.

Yeah.

20

Q.

What are the residential neighborhoods around there?

21

A.

I can't put names on them but there's -- you got rural

22

property going out to the creek, you come up Howard Gap

23

Road, you've got Couch Mountain, you've got a whole

24

bunch of -- you see gated communities around the -- or

25

gated community around the hospital, one with a lake.
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You've got a lot of rental properties in that

2

neighborhood because of the interstate noise also in

3

that neighborhood.

4

Q.

You familiar with Brookside Camp Road?

5

A.

Yes, sir.

6

Q.

And there's an older subdivision that's been out there

7

for 25, 30 years or more.

8

you see in Hendersonville market?

9

trend?

10

A.

11

What kind of value trend did
What was the value

I didn't break out Hendersonville differently than the
plant.

I looked at the zip code around that plant.

12

Q.

What did you see is the value trend?

13

A.

When you compare it to the --

14

Q.

What was the value trend in that zip code?

15

A.

It was increasing.

I don't have those numbers with me.

16

If you would like that information I could -- I could

17

compile it that way, in that format.

18

Q.

You went back 15 years?

19

A.

Correct.

20

Q.

So you don't know what it was but you --

21

A.

Property values have been trending upward over the 15

22

years in all of the locations.

23

Q.

I'm talking about the rate trend.

24

A.

I don't have -- I didn't break it down on a per-year

25

basis.
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Q.

Or the -- over the period of time, the 15 years?

2

A.

Over the 15 I just -- I've just went with the

3
4

comparison between the two.
Q.

5

And what was -- does your report have the trend in that
zip code in Hendersonville?

6

A.

It has the difference in there.

7

Q.

It has the difference but it doesn't tell you what the

8
9

trend was, does it?
A.

It was upward.

No, it does not tell you what the trend

10

was.

It doesn't have -- it doesn't have that broken

11

out.

I can do that if you'd like.

12

Q.

And the trend is established by looking at what average

13

price house sold for in one year in the area and then

14

coming back again and looking at average price of what

15

houses sold for in that area?

16

A.

17

Right.

You can look at -- you can develop a various

level of detail.

18

Q.

So 15 years ago would be 2003?

19

A.

Yes.

20

Q.

So if houses, all houses sold in that neighborhood

21

averaged $158,000 and then in 2018 the same

22

neighborhood averaged $260,000, that's a pretty

23

significant increase, isn't it?

24

A.

Yes.

25

Q.

Let me show you Exhibit 54 (sic) and ask if you've got
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any reason to believe that this information is not

2

correct.

3

(WHEREUPON, Applicant Exhibit Number 51 previously

4

marked for identification was passed to the

5

witness for review)

6

A.

Where's the data from and what are those numbers of?

7

Q.

The average sale prices, if those are average sale

8

prices.

9

A.

Average sale prices of what, all single-family houses?

10

Q.

Uh-huh.

11

A.

Does it include manufactured?

12

Q.

It includes that neighborhood, the whole neighborhood

13
14

within a half a mile of that plant.
A.

So you're saying if it includes the whole neighborhood

15

then it would include duplexes and apartments and -- or

16

are you talking about --

17

Q.

No, just --

18

A.

-- just single-family?

19

Q.

Single-family.

20

A.

Well, it's an upward trend.

21

Q.

Pretty significant upper trend.

22

And you can't tell me

whether that's faster or slower than that zip code?

23

MR. GULDEN:

24

MR. SNEED:

25

MR. GULDEN:

It's 51.
That's all the questions I have.
Mr. Read, unless the board has some
Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. V
559
May 15, 2019
1

questions, I've just got a few follow-up

2

questions.

3

R E D I R E C T

4

Q.

E X A M I N A T I O N

BY MR. GULDEN:

Mr. Sneed was talking about price acceleration in

5

different neighborhoods and I'm glad he brought that

6

up.

7

you if this is kind of what you were looking at.

8

I'm going to show you some of these and just ask

So this here is the Enka plant.

9

And in your

analysis you went out in a mile radius, a two-mile

10

circle, and is it your opinion that all of the homes,

11

whether they're single-family homes or all of the homes

12

whether they're single-family homes, million dollars or

13

mobile homes, that those property values increased at a

14

slower rate than the property in that entire zip code?

15

A.

Correct.

16

Q.

All right.

So that was for Enka.

17

slower rate.

18

Black Mountain, correct?

It increased at a

You've got Black Mountain, you looked at

19

A.

That is correct.

20

Q.

And you did the same thing, you found the Black

21

Mountain plant and you took a two-mile circle and

22

looked at all the property in there and you basically

23

made the conclusion, correct me if I'm wrong, you made

24

the conclusion that the property within that one mile,

25

the two-mile circle appreciated less than the bounds of
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the property in Black Mountain?

2

A.

That is correct.

3

Q.

And you even put a percentage on how much less it

4

appreciated?

5

A.

Yes.

6

Q.

Is that correct, in your report?

7

A.

That is correct.

8

Q.

And then you looked at the Weaverville plant and you

9

went out to the Weaverville plant and you did the same

10

thing, you drew a circle around it, one-mile radius.

11

And you looked at the increase of the property, all the

12

property, whether it's $5 million houses or a $5,000

13

mobile home or a $2,000 tiny house, you looked at all

14

that property and did you make a conclusion, did you

15

draw a conclusion that the property within that circle

16

appreciates less than the balance of the property in

17

that Weaverville zip code?

18

A.

Yes.

19

Q.

And is it your opinion that the property within a one-

20

mile radius, this two-mile circle around this proposed

21

site, is it your opinion that those property values

22

will appreciate less than the bounds of the property in

23

Madison County?

24

A.

Yes.

25

Q.

Whether it includes a $500,000 house or a $5,000 tiny
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house?

2

A.

That's correct.

3

Q.

And the effect of slower appreciation has an actual

4

effect on individuals, does it not?

5

A.

Yes, it does.

6

Q.

And what effect is that?

7

A.

Just incoming expenses.

8
9

If somebody goes to move, you

get less money for your property.
Q.

And that has a negative or does that have an injurious

10

effect on property that surrounds this proposed asphalt

11

plant?

12

A.

13

Yes.
MR. GULDEN:

Those would be my questions.

14

R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

15

Q.

BY MR. SNEED:

So to be clear on Marshall, proposed Marshall plant,

16

you concluded that the quarry has had no adverse effect

17

on property values?

18

A.

19
20

radius, correct.
Q.

21
22

When you include all the property within a one-mile

But the only reason you can say the asphalt plant will
be worse than the quarry itself is hours of operation?

A.

And it's based -- well, those are two factors that an

23

asphalt plant has that a rock quarry typically doesn't,

24

but that's why all these other properties that we

25

looked at all have rock quarries and asphalt plants.
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Q.

Located next to the road?

2

A.

This one's next to a road.

3

Q.

No, it's public road.

4

All the others are on public

roads.

5

A.

This one's got a public road on two sides, three sides.

6

Q.

Is the asphalt plant next to the road?

7

A.

The property is all on one property.

8

haven't seen a survey or subdivision.

9

and it goes to the road.

10

Q.

11
12

It hasn't -- I
It's one piece

The only -- you can't see down in there from the road,
can you?

A.

It depends which -- what piece.

I mean, you can see

13

down on the lot.

14

send you.

15

from the other property, you can see down in there from

16

the neighboring properties.

17

Q.

I've got photos I can bring in and

I took pictures from the road.

You can see

But it's not going to be located adjacent to the

18

highway, the public highway where you can drive up,

19

stop and go right in the plant like the others you saw?

20

A.

You can't, on the Enka you can't see it from the road.

21

Q.

Waynesville you can.

Asheville Highway you can but you

22

didn't go there.

23

asphalt plants right next to each other on Creek Road,

24

you can see them right from the public road, right?

25

A.

Weaverville you can and the two

Most -- some of the stuff.
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Q.

Say again?

2

A.

Some of the -- some of it.

3

Q.

You can also see the towers.

4

A.

Part of it.

5

Q.

The silos.

6

MR. SNEED:

7

MR. GULDEN:

8

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

9

MR. GULDEN:

You see the piles of rock.

That's all I have.
Nothing further.
You ready for your next?

Yes.

You can sit down, Mr. Read.

10

Thank you, Mr. Read.

11

We'd call Dr. Janice Coverdale.

12
13

DR. JANICE COVERDALE, being first duly
identified and sworn was examined and testified as follows:

14

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

15

Would you state your name for

the court reporter?

16

THE WITNESS:

17

MR. GULDEN:

I'm Dr. Janice Coverdale.
You can have a seat Dr. Coverdale.

18

D I R E C T

19

Q.

Good afternoon, Dr. Coverdale.

20

A.

Good evening.

21

Q.

Good evening.

22

E X A M I N A T I O N

Thank you.

Did you spell your last name

for Madam Court Reporter?

23

A.

Yes.

24

Q.

Thank you very much.

25

BY MR. GULDEN:

C-o-v-e-r-d-a-l-e.
And Dr. Coverdale, where do you

currently reside?
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A.

I live in Madison County.

2

Q.

And can you tell -- can you tell the board a little bit

3
4

about your education and work history?
A.

Sure.

After college, I attended Washington University

5

and I studied neurobiology research.

6

to the University of Louisville School of Medicine and

7

I continued and completed my pediatric training at the

8

University of Louisville School of Medicine Department

9

of Pediatrics.

10

Q.

11
12

A.

Well, the residency was the Department of Pediatrics,
was the residency.

Q.

15
16

And once you completed that did you do any residency?
Did you --

13
14

After that I went

And you have your medical license now, your medical
degree?

A.

I do.

I have 40 years plus four decades of pediatric

17

experience and 37 of those years have been spent in

18

Madison County where I live.

19

in this end of the county most of those 37 years.

20

I also served twice as president of the Mountain

21

Pediatric Society, which is a regional pediatric

22

society.

I have lived and worked

23

Q.

And do you have any additional certifications or --

24

A.

I'm certified to practice still in North Carolina.

25

have retired and -- in the last year and I am still
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doing chart reviews and I'm still licensed in North

2

Carolina.

3

Q.

And tell the board a little bit about what your

4

pediatric practice entailed.

5

you treating?

6

A.

What age children were

I'm here to talk about children and I saw children from

7

infancy, soon as they're born to usually 18, but

8

sometimes young people need care a little longer.

9

Fortunately, I worked with a practice that they could

10
11

make a transition to family practice very easily.
Q.

And when you were giving your medical advise and your

12

medical opinions to parents about their children, did

13

those parents rely on your opinion and medical advise?

14

A.

Sure.

15

Q.

Have you published any papers or -- is that a silly

16
17

question?
A.

18
19

(Laughing)

No, it's not -- not really the scope of my

practice here after I came to Madison County.
Q.

Wonderful.

I want to ask you a little about some of

20

the physiology of children.

21

about physiology of children?

Are you able to testify

22

A.

Sure.

As long as we stay with children, I'm here.

23

Q.

I mean, it's debatable when children turn into adults.

24

People my age I used to think were adults; I don't know

25

anymore.
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Explain to the board a little bit about child --

2
3

children, childhood physiology.
A.

Okay.

I'm here specifically to talk about some of the

4

sites and some of the children that might be involved

5

closer to the asphalt plant.

And I -- it is important

6

to know that several things.

The daycare that's the

7

closest has children as young as six weeks old.

8

And there are some things we know about children

9

that are interesting.

When an infant is born, it's

10

born with 20 percent of its lung development.

11

takes the rest of 17 years to complete lung

12

development.

13

Q.

And it

And so if we're -- I just want to come up and ask you

14

this question to show you this document.

15

Coverdale, have you been here through most if not all

16

of the testimony over the last couple of days?

17

A.

Not all, but much.

18

Q.

But much.

Dr.

And you understood from whether it was the

19

Applicant or from some of the witnesses that we have

20

put up in front of you that there will be some

21

discharge from this proposed asphalt plant, did you

22

understand that?

23

A.

Oh, yes, I did.

24

Q.

And some of the discharge that they were looking at,

25

they've listed in their -- in their report, and I just
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want to ask you to look over this, but we'll look at it

2

together.

3

plant will be emitted, this is the Applicant's exhibit.

Some of the air pollutants that the asphalt

4

MR. SNEED:

5

MR. GULDEN:

6
7

What page are you on?
I'm on Form B, Specific Emission

Source Information.
Q.

And it's -- and it will be emitted from the hot mist --

8

hot mix asphalt rotary drum mixer and the dryer.

9

they'll have particulate matter of 10 microns.

And
They'll

10

have particulate matter less than 2.5 sulphur dioxide,

11

nitrogen oxide, carbon monoxide, VOCs, lead.

12

also have hazardous air pollutants.

13

them out, formaldehyde, toluene, hexane, polycyclic

14

organic matter, benzene, ethyl benzene -- I would say

15

that word, I don't know what that is, naphthalene and

16

xylene.

17

exhibits that's been introduced.

18

They'll

They've listed

You can keep that up there, that's one of the

You're talking about young children and their lung

19

development.

20

pollutants and hazardous air pollutants, what effect

21

could those have on all those young children that we

22

were just talking about at the daycare facility?

23

A.

What effect are all of those criteria

We had a lot of concern about all of these.

Benzene

24

has no safe level.

These particulate matters are --

25

they carry toxins and they are very tiny, PM10, PM2.5
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and I'm not going to go any farther, but they're so

2

tiny that they can reach airways easily.

3

the parts about airways you need to understand.

4

infants especially, six weeks old, and toddlers, their

5

airways are very small and it's a very short distance

6

to get into the airway and into the lungs.

7

And some of
In

Now, the daycare, for example, has normal air

8

circulation, no filter.

9

a concern.

The play area is close and is

The younger children, these really youngest

10

ones, these inflammatory toxic PM10, PM2.5 or benzene

11

cause inflammatory reactions.

12

swelling.

13

what we see and treat and don't want to see very much

14

is called bronchiolitis.

15

for weeks.

16

can't rest at night and can't breathe.

17

up all night.

18

morning.

19

any more treatment than to try to humidify the air,

20

oxygen if needed, and try to support them.

21

their airways are so young that our traditional

22

medicines even steroids, bronchodilators that we use

23

for asthma don't work in these really young children.

24

There also can be a silent airway reaction.

25

They cause airway

So when you're in this really young group,

It's wheezing that will go on

It's always worse at night.

The child
The parents are

We talk to parents, we see them in the

Even if we hospitalize them, we don't have

It is --

And

that's in a way more disturbing because these children
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don't show a lot of signs but we know that they can be

2

at high risk for SIDS or crib death.

3

Q.

And you're saying that there is a risk based upon what

4

you're looking at up there, that there could be this

5

effect on these children that are in the daycare

6

facility?

7

A.

And that's the young age.

8

Q.

What about -- what about the individuals -- well,

9

that's the young age, is there something else for a

10

little older age?

11

A.

Uh-huh.

12

Q.

And what would that be?

What risk are they at for the

13

-- for the particulate matters that we talked about

14

here, the particulate matters and the benzene, what --

15

the not so young age?

16

A.

All right.

So toddlers are very close to the ground.

17

They go outdoors, and by the way, toddlers at the

18

daycare and the daycare has children up to five.

19

They're required to go outside twice a day.

20

public health standards assuming we have clean air.

21

And when they go outside they play close to the ground

22

so they bring things close to their mouth, their eyes,

23

their ears.

24
25

That's

These are high risk for them.

As they get older they begin to play in other
areas.

But no matter where they're playing, they are
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either exposed to toxic particulates or whatever is in

2

the air, but they're exposed to an accumulating --

3

toxic particulate accumulating in the soil, in the

4

ground, in the grass and when they play they are

5

exposed to that accumulated amount, not just for that

6

day and that day's emissions.

7

has accumulated.

8

into the ages with the playgrounds and the ballparks

9

especially, they kick up, stir up air toxic

They're exposed for what

And as the kids play and as they get

10

particulates, these very tiny ones, PM10, PM2.5 and

11

they re-aerosolize it so they re-breathe it.

12

breathe something that has accumulated and is more than

13

what is originally just emitted for that day.

14

Q.

They re-

And you mentioned something that's interesting.

Mr.

15

Sneed introduced a report, I think it was called the

16

Salisbury report, done by the CDC maybe in conjunction

17

with maybe a university.

18

to look at this, I'm looking at 10 of Mr. Sneed's

19

exhibits, that over objection he asked that it be

20

admitted, and it was. If you can read here on page 10

21

and just start right here with "Children play."

22

can read that for the board.

23

A.

And in particular, I want you

If you

"Children play outdoors and sometimes engage in hand-

24

to-mouth behaviors that increase their exposure

25

potential.

Children are shorter than adults, this
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means they breathe dust, soil and vapors close to the

2

ground.

3

intake results in a greater dose of hazardous substance

4

per unit of body weight."

5

Q.

6
7

All right.

And is that -- is that exactly what you

were trying to say to this board?
A.

To --

8
9

A child's lower body weight and higher air

MR. SNEED:
Q.

Object to that reading.

What are you trying to say, does this -- well, let me

10

ask you this question.

11

Does this demonstrate the testimony that you were

12

trying to give to the board?

13

A.

Yes.

I'll withdraw that question.

When children are exercising and outdoors and

14

playing whatever they're doing outside, they are

15

working harder and they breathe 20 to 50 times faster

16

than any adults that are out there with them.

17

breathe more in.

18

size is not as big.

19

convoluted; it's easier to get into the lungs.

20

of these years, seven weeks that are in the daycare,

21

six or seven weeks old, to 17, those are all developing

22

years.

23

They're still making air sacs and this is where the air

24

goes across the barrier to the blood stream.

25

lungs are less complex, less convoluted and much more

They breathe more deeply.

So they
Their body

Their airways are not as
And all

Their lungs are developing all of those years.
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2

highly sensitive to inflammatory toxic particulates.
Q.

You had mentioned a word that I'm not necessarily

3

familiar with.

4

you were talking about the ballfields and this map is

5

an aerial map and it's been identified and admitted.

6

And the child development lab is -- the child

7

development has been testified to be four-tenths of a

8

mile away from the proposed facility.

9

Madison County ballfields at about a half mile.

10
11

You had moved on from the daycare and

It has the
You

said something about re-aerosolizing?
A.

That's just a description of what happens when these

12

particulates accumulate in the area in the ground, but

13

in the grass in any place that they're outdoors there

14

is an accumulative effect over time, days, weeks,

15

months, years.

16

especially ball games in the -- they play T-ball, they

17

play softball, they play soccer, these particles, these

18

particulates are re-aerosolized and re-breathed.

19

there is an accumulation of these particulates.

And then when the -- when play,

20

Q.

And --

21

A.

This is from the American Academy of Pediatric --

22

Q.

Yeah, and you're extremely familiar with that?

23

A.

That's what I'm here for.

24

Q.

Yes.

25

A.

That's what I studied.
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Q.

It also -- there happens to be a Co-op Extension

2

Center.

3

in any activities at the Co-op Extension Center?

4

A.

Are you aware of any children that participate

The Co-op Extension Center has both adults and children

5

but they are very active with activities like the FFA

6

so over where you begin to see the fairgrounds is where

7

the high school actually brings students over for FFA.

8

It's part of the high school program, part of middle

9

school too.

And they ride horses, they show animals,

10

there probably is some bull riding over there certainly

11

in the fairgrounds.

12

Q.

And would that --

13

A.

And these are bigger children.

14

Q.

Yes.

15

And would those activities, if you know, would

they cause this re-aerosolization --

16

A.

Sure.

17

Q.

-- of the particulate matters?

18

A.

Absolutely.

19

Q.

And if the young children are over there would they --

20
21

would they be breathing that re-aerosolized -A.

Sure.

And there's all ages over there.

There are

22

mothers, there are other children.

I mean, there are

23

whole families there and there can be pregnant mothers

24

there so.

25

facilities, county fairground and this is the county's

These are county ballfields and county
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daycare.

2

really young children.

3

Q.

This is the only daycare that takes these

Just to ask, is the -- and you may not know, does the

4

report that TRC has done that you've been looking at

5

that lists all the hazardous air pollutants, those are

6

-- those are below the state-mandated standards, and so

7

they're below the level that the state says you have to

8

be below if you're going to produce 100,000 tons of

9

asphalt a year.

In your testimony to the board, does

10

the benzene or the particulate matters, does that have

11

-- does the fact that it's below the state standard

12

have any effect on whether you think the children in

13

these areas will be at risk?

14

A.

My concern, and I wouldn't be here today if I didn't

15

have that concern, is the accumulative effect and re-

16

breathing, re-aerosolizing, re-experiencing it.

17

Q.

And so, I guess, if I'm looking at the standard under

18

which the board has to look at, individuals residing

19

and working there aren't any children, the children

20

don't live at the daycare facility and, of course,

21

they're not working there.

22

to a medical degree of certainty and satisfactory to

23

yourself as to whether or not this asphalt plant, if

24

permitted, will have a detrimental effect to the public

25

welfare?

But do you have an opinion
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A.

Yes, these are facilities for public welfare and

2

they're really important to these families and these

3

facilities are for the public and for -- it's --

4

they're really there for our health and our well-being.

5

And so this certainly would be detrimental to public

6

welfare.

7

Q.

And by "this" you mean the asphalt plant?

8

A.

Yes, because it's too close and because of the

9
10

accumulation.
Q.

And I just want to ask, you've got this pediatric-

11

centered medical practice focus, but if you were

12

putting a brand new daycare facility would you locate

13

it within 4.3 miles of an asphalt plant?

14

A.

No.

If we were here and the asphalt plant was already

15

present then I would probably be testifying against

16

putting a daycare so close to the potential for

17

emissions and especially the potential for

18

accumulation.

19

healthy children here, we haven't even mentioned

20

asthma.

21

Q.

And we haven't -- we're talking about

And thank you for bringing that up.

Tell us a little

22

bit about the effects these particulate matters and the

23

hazardous air pollutants would have on children with

24

asthma that may attend the child development center?

25

A.

Okay.

A big part of my practice was asthma if it
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wasn't infants.

And asthma is something we are

2

continuing to understand.

3

10 children.

4

one in 20.

5

than Buncombe.

6

or higher in any urban areas, even like Asheville, and

7

we're somewhere between one in 10 and one in 20.

8

sorry, I'll rephrase that.

9

percent and 20 percent of children have asthma.

It affects, at least, one in

In Buncombe County, we know it affects
Madison County may be a little different
It always seems to be about one in 20

I'm

We're somewhere between 10
And

10

Madison County I thought was lower but exposure to

11

particulates and airborne particulates can really

12

increase that number that appear.

13

occurrence of asthma based on emergency room visits

14

primarily.

15

children might have asthma and we know at least one in

16

10 have asthma.

17

And we measure the

So we're really looking at one in five

It's very expensive.

If -- if you have a child

18

with asthma that is not aggravated you still probably

19

have about $3,000 per year per child in extra medical

20

expenses because of the cost of the medications in

21

controlling it.

22

that it's just allergies.

23

particulates, other pollutants in the air then asthma

24

becomes very complicated.

25

We don't have good solutions; we don't have allergy

And you can control asthma if we think
But when there are other

It's not as easy to control.
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vaccines, things like that.

2

an emergency room with asthma or be hospitalized

3

increases to $6,000 per year to hospitalizations,

4

$14,000 per child per year when their asthma is really

5

aggravated in an environment.

6

Q.

And the cost of going to

And you said that a child's asthma can be aggravated

7

when exposed to different pollutants and I'm going to

8

ask you, is it like, these particulate matters that

9

will be emitted from the asphalt plant, could that --

10

A.

I think these particulate matters are going to be the

11

biggest problem but the benzene and the toluene, as

12

these are -- if these are emissions, I think they can

13

reach this area, they will be a problem.

14

particulates, especially 2.5 will reach the lungs

15

deeply, cause the most problem, PM10's and these will

16

accumulate.

17

interfere with the immune system and there are a lot of

18

problems with the interference of the immune system

19

with all of these dangerous, toxic particulate matter

20

and benzene.

21

But the

And they are inflammatory so they

And I could tell you more about the immune

22

response but we -- we don't know whether that's causing

23

asthma but it causes a lot of problems.

24

you are the more these can interfere in the immune

25

system, that interferes in everything about
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development.

2

but it also can affect development.

3

growth, it can affect learning, it can affect young

4

children very seriously.

5

Q.

So it causes an overreaction in asthma
It can affect

And all those that you're talking about, all the

6

effects, is it still, or do you still have an opinion

7

as to whether or not if this asphalt plant is approved

8

whether it will be detrimental to the public welfare?

9

A.

Oh, it will be seriously detrimental to the public

10

welfare and I don't believe anyone means for this to

11

happen.

12

I think it's a problem with the accumulation.

13

honestly, I feel like there are children that spend a

14

lot of their lives in these areas.

15

are areas that children come to in daycare and they

16

come to repeatedly in the ballparks throughout their

17

school years and they come to in high school.

I think it is a problem with the emissions and
And

This is -- these

18

We also know that if you have repeated exposure

19

this has a effect so that in the American Academy of

20

Pediatrics they have written some articles about

21

children who are exposed to these particulates and the

22

children that play three sports have -- and now we're

23

back talking about healthy children -- the children

24

that play three sports are probably the children that

25

are the most active, enthusiastic, healthy, they're out
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there.

Their parents are doing what we want them to

2

do.

3

potential.

4

areas where these particulate exposures occur, these

5

tiny toxic inflammatory particulates occur, children

6

who play three sports perform worse, more poorly on

7

peak flowed meters which are easy to do, easy to study

8

the lung's capacity.

9

children that play one sport.

They're out there and they may have tremendous
But children that play three sports in

They perform more poorly than the
It should not be that

10

way.

11

something more because children breathe faster, 20 to

12

50 times faster and they are out there more and they

13

are at serious risk.

14

playing sports and they would normally have the

15

potential to be athletes or at least be very healthy

16

kids, they will have an effect on their endurance,

17

their -- the distance that they can run, their entire

18

potential and they can remain more fatigued and have

19

less energy as an adult.

20

potential.

21

It means that they are getting exposed to

MR. GULDEN:

They will have, because they were

They will not reach their

Those would be my questions.

22

C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

23

Q.

BY MR. SNEED:

So Doctor, you know where this PM10 and PM2.5 comes

24

from?

25

from?

Particulate matter, do you know where it comes
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A.

2
3

It comes from a lot of things, but it can come from
asphalt emissions.

Q.

4

But tell me the other things you understand it comes
from.

5

A.

It comes from anything that is polluting.

6

Q.

Anything that's polluting?

7

A.

Yes.

8

Q.

So from the asphalt plant these emissions come from air

9
10

being blown over crushed rock?
A.

I don't think the crushed rock make a whole lot of

11

difference.

12

rock.

13

very tiny PM2.5, PM10 that we've already talked about.

14

Q.

15
16

These are bigger particles than crushed

The real concern here are these volatile and

So you don't think that the PM10 comes from the rock,
it comes from some other source?

A.

17

No.

These -- these are very tiny and they occur with

combustion.

18

Q.

Well --

19

A.

I think Madison County has been lucky that we haven't

20
21

had a lot of other sources.
Q.

All right.

So your opinion is based on the fact that

22

the PM10 doesn't come from crushed rock, it comes from

23

some other source?

24

A.

I'm the most concerned about the PM2.5 --

25
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A.

-- but these are both very tiny.

I'm not as concerned

2

about anything from the crushed rock.

3

about it but I'm not as concerned.

4

Q.

5

All right.

I'm not crazy

So I want to make sure I hear that you're

not at all concerned --

6

A.

No, I'm not as much.

7

Q.

-- about the particulate that comes from the crushed

8
9

rock?
A.

Not as much as I am from something that is involved in

10

combustion.

11

about carry arsenic, cadmium, I'll go back over that

12

list.

13
14

The -- the PM10, PM2.5 that I'm concerned

MR. GULDEN:
A.

If I could just hand it up to you.

It's not my area of expertise but I did not want to

15

come before this board unless I was convinced that

16

there would be particulates of concern.

17

Q.

Now, you've expressed concern about the amount that's

18

exhibited here in these reports.

Have you ever

19

contacted the DEQ and complain about the levels of

20

particulate matter they allow in air permits?

21

A.

I'm here.

22

Q.

Have you ever contacted the Division of Environmental

23

Quality or the Department of Environmental Advisory

24

Board of the DEQ to complain about the levels they set?

25

A.

Right now I'm concerned about what's proposed.
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Q.

I'm asking you about the levels they have permitted in

2

air quality permits for years.

Have you ever called

3

them or written them a letter to complain about it?

4

A.

I haven't had any reason to till now.

5

Q.

You're talking about all of the instances where

6
7

children are kicking up dirt on the playground?
A.

It's not dirt I'm concerned about.

These are really

8

different, these PM10, PM2.5 and they carry

9

particulates that are -- have arsenic, lead, cadmium.

10

Cadmium is so tiny, we don't even know the distances it

11

can travel and it is in cigarette smoke in very, very,

12

very tiny amounts.

13

carcinogen that is the most potent in cigarette

14

smoking.

15

smoke exposure to children, if you're asking me that.

But it can cause a lot -- it is the

I do have a lot of concern about cigarette

16

Q.

No, I'm asking you --

17

A.

Because this is very similar.

18

Q.

Well, you realize that they did not require air

19

modeling for cadmium?

20

A.

I'm just concerned because I know it's there.

21

Q.

All right.

But you expressed these concerns but you

22

raised them for the first time because this asphalt

23

plant's going in, but you've never contacted them and

24

complained about the levels they allow?

25

MR. GULDEN:

Objection.

Asked and answered.
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THE WITNESS:

2

MR. GULDEN:

3

Q.

All right.

I haven't had a reason to.
And she's answered it three times.

Now, have you complained to them about the

4

levels of benzene that they allow as the acceptable

5

ambient level?

6

A.

I have not had a reason to do this till now.

7

Q.

Now, benzene is C6H6, right?

8

A.

Uh-huh.

9

Q.

And it's everywhere.

It comes from gasoline, it comes

10

from fires, it comes from charcoal, fires, it comes

11

from gas stoves and it's everywhere, isn't it?

12

A.

I have a lot of concern about benzene from a lot -- a

13

lot of sources.

14

is very concerned and there are a lot of studies

15

ongoing right now about children who live near filling

16

stations.

But the --

17

Q.

And there's --

18

A.

So --

19
20

MR. GULDEN:
A.

And the American Academy of Pediatrics

Well, let her answer the question.

There is -- there is benzene in a lot of sources, yes.

21

But I haven't taken up every filling station but I do

22

not want to see more.

23

Q.

24
25

And you've not complained to the DEQ about the levels
they permit --

A.

Well, now that I'm retired, I may take up that up next.
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(Audience applause).

2

Q.

And benzene is C6H6, which is --

3

A.

I'm not the chemist here.

4

Q.

You didn't study chemistry in --

5

A.

I did.

6

Q.

But you don't know that that's the formula?

7

A.

I think it is, but --

8

Q.

And are you aware that benzene oxidizes in the

9

atmosphere?

10

A.

Meaning it disappears?

11

Q.

It turns into carbon dioxide in the water.

12

A.

Sure.

And that's why I also brought up the PM2.5 and

13

the PM10.

14

studied, is probably, I guess when the plant is

15

operating and how long it persists, probably has to do

16

with the climatology and the meteorologist and what

17

they have to say and how far it travels has a lot to do

18

with what they have to say.

19

myself that this wasn't an area that could be exposed

20

to benzene and the references that I found said that

21

benzene could travel 1.8 miles and still be of toxic

22

concern.

23

Q.

24
25

The benzene is probably from what I read and

I just had to satisfy

But the toxicity depends on the concentration, doesn't
it?

A.

Sure.

And I really have to defer to the meteorologist
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in terms of what happens with -- with the air modeling.

2

Q.

And with levels that are toxic too, right?

3

A.

Sure.

4

Q.

You'd have to defer to a toxicologist about the limits

5
6

of toxins?
A.

All right.

But I wouldn't want to be exposed to any

7

benzene.

Benzene really has no safe level.

The ones

8

that accumulate would certainly be in the PM10, PM2.5.

9

Q.

What do you think the level of benzene in this room is?

10

A.

I'm not --

11

MR. GULDEN:

12

THE WITNESS:
Q.

15
16

19
20

And I wouldn't know.

Well, let me ask you here if you have any evidence to
dispute this chart produced by the North Carolina DEQ?

A.

17
18

Calls for speculation.

Has nothing to do with anything.

13
14

Objection.

You might be getting out of my area of expertise
because I really am here to talk about just kids.

Q.

But you've been talking about benzene pretty good.

Is

that outside your expertise?
MR. GULDEN:

Well, she -- objection to that

21

question.

It's extremely argumentative.

22

He's been asking her significant questions

23

about benzene.

24

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

Sustained.

25

(WHEREUPON, Applicant Exhibit Number 29 previously
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marked for identification was passed to the

2

witness for review)

3

Q.

Take a minute to look at that document.

4

A.

This is way out of my expertise even to interpret it.

5
6

It's not my field.
Q.

Purports to show the hourly acceptable ambient limit of

7

benzene to be 1.8 micrograms per hour.

8

gasoline is 92 micrograms per hour.

9

A.

And pumping

I am very concerned about -- there is a lot of

10

literature from the American Academy of Pediatrics

11

about gasoline and filling stations.

12

to testify about that but I have a great deal of

13

concern.

14

Q.

Well, I understand that.

And I'm not here

And it also shows that indoor

15

air is 62 micrograms per hour; particularly, if you've

16

got a fireplace or a gas stove in the house.

17

MR. GULDEN:

18

I

think he's just badgering the witness.

19
20

And I'm just going to object.

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:
Q.

Sustained.

If I understood your testimony the -- I was a little

21

confused about the percentage of asthma in Madison

22

County.

23

A.

I confused it.

Okay.

So, asthma.

Ten percent I know

24

is what we have asthma in Madison county.

25

probably higher and it varies from area to area.
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Buncombe County it is 20 percent.

2

that show you the region and the -- and county by

3

county and --

4

Q.

So 20 percent of all instances --

5

A.

Absolutely.

These are on charts

Now, we don't really define it as asthma

6

until after about two, so that's why I was talking

7

about these younger children they have these reactive

8

airways.

9

the emergency room.

10
11

But asthma, statistics are based on trips to
I don't want to see more children

in Madison County making trips to the emergency room.
Q.

All right.

And so just to be clear, you're not

12

concerned at all about PM10 or PM25 (sic) that comes

13

from crushed rock?

14

PM25 (sic) comes from somewhere else, is that right?

15

A.

You're concerned about PM10 and

I'm concerned about all of them.

But the toxicity, the

16

inflammatory, toxic, carcinogenic, immunogenic portions

17

of these particulates coming from combustion,

18

combustible sources.

19

Q.

I understand.

20

A.

Okay.

21

Q.

Comes from combustion.

22
23

And so the quarry's a little different.
Is that the PM10, PM2.5 that

comes from combustion -A.

Those are the ones I'm concerned about because those

24

are the ones that would be carrying the arsenic,

25

cadmium, lead, mercury.

These are all highly toxic,
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inflammatory, dangerous.

2

developing lungs.

3

Q.

4

And what makes them dangerous is the chemicals that are
attached to them?

5

A.

Yes.

6

Q.

Thank you, ma'am.

7
8
9
10
11

And especially dangerous for

MR. GULDEN:

Those would be -- nothing, no

followup.
CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

Board members and then we had

some questions.
MR. RAMSEY:

Dr. Coverdale, in your opinion, do

12

you think this will adversely affect or be

13

detrimental to the children in that daycare

14

that we're talking about next to this plant?

15

THE WITNESS:

16

MR. RAMSEY:

17

THE WITNESS:

18

MR. RAMSEY:

19

THE WITNESS:

20

MR. RAMSEY:

21

THE WITNESS:

22
23
24
25

Yes.
Do you have grandchildren?
I wish.
Do you have children?
Huh?
Do you have children?
Yeah, my children grew up here.

Uh-

huh.
MR. RAMSEY:

Would you put them in that daycare

when they were young?
THE WITNESS:

Oh, I wouldn't put them there.
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is a very good daycare but I would not -- I

2

would not after there was an asphalt plant

3

because of what I know.

4

for those other kids.

5

are very young and in that daycare in almost

6

all cases are there because there is no other

7

care for them during the day.

8

need that daycare in order to work and

9

usually it's subsidized so most of those

But I need to speak
These children that

Their parents

10

children have no choice about that daycare.

11

No matter what goes in, they don't have any

12

choice.

13

and it's a great one and I looked into it

14

many times in my practice to be sure that it

15

was also acting like a preschool and had high

16

standards, and it does.

This is a very subsidized daycare

17

MR. RAMSEY:

Thank you.

18

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

If there are no other questions,

19

I believe it would be time for us to take our

20

break.

21
22

Be back here at five minutes to 8:00.

(WHEREUPON, the hearing recessed at 7:42 p.m. and
reconvened at 7:59 p.m.)

23

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

24

MR. GULDEN:

25

Are we ready to proceed?

Yes, we are, Madam Chair.

Rob Beddingfield to the stand.
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2

ROBERT BEDDINGFIELD, being first duly
identified and sworn was examined and testified as follows:

3

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

4

Would you state your name for

the court reporter?

5

THE WITNESS:

Robert Beddingfield.

6

D I R E C T

7

Q.

Mr. Beddingfield, would you have a seat?

8

A.

Thank you, sir.

9

Q.

Can you spell your last name for Madam Court Reporter?

10

A.

B-e-d-d-i-n-g-f-i-e-l-d.

11

Q.

Mr. Beddingfield, I want to -- tell me a little bit

12
13

E X A M I N A T I O N

BY MR. GULDEN:

about your education.
A.

Sure.

I have two bachelor's degrees, one in English

14

literature, a second in philosophy and religion.

In

15

addition to this I have a degree in forest management,

16

during which time I concurrently earned a sixth month

17

standing certification to be a wildland firefighter.

18

That certification is still active.

19

certificate as a natural resources specialist with

20

expertise in hydrology and GIS analysis.

I also hold a

21

Q.

And did you say that last one was a certificate also?

22

A.

Yes, sir.

23

Q.

Is it still current?

24

A.

It is, it's lifetime.

25

Q.

Tell me a little bit about your forestry management and
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wildland firefighting experience.

2

the board a little bit about your forestry management

3

and wildland firefighting certification.

4

do with those?

5

A.

Sure, sure.

Don't tell me, tell

What do you

Well, it actually began before I earned

6

that degree, I was working for a wilderness outfit

7

company called Forest Circles Recovery Center, helping

8

young men and women struggling with addiction to drugs

9

and alcohol find recovery in the mountains of Western

10

North Carolina.

11

worked with Forest Service personnel to develop site

12

plans predominantly based around preventing erosion and

13

preventing wildfire, facilitating practices to ensure

14

that groups that camped in the woods camped safely in a

15

way that would not impact the land in one of the

16

aforestated ways.

17

pursue a degree in forest management which I acquired

18

with a 4.0 GPA, was a valedictorian for my class.

19

In my role as a field supervisor, I

And from there I was inspired to

And from there I went directly to work for the

20

Southern Research Station based in Asheville as a

21

forester and research technician.

22

chief scientist, Tara Keyser on national level studies.

23

My work in GIS mapping as well as data sets, I was

24

responsible for collecting the data for our president

25

in national level studies.
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Q.

Tell me a little bit about your wildland firefighting

2

certification.

3

you done with that?

4

A.

Sure.

What did you do with that?

What have

I have volunteered on prescribed burns.

I have

5

volunteered on containment teams for some of the

6

wildfires that we have experienced here in Western

7

North Carolina.

8

Q.

9

Did you as -- well, let me ask, how long did you work
with the Southern Research Station as a forester, you

10

said?

11

A.

2015 to 2016.

12

Q.

How long have you had your wildland firefighting

13

My title was research technician.

certification?

14

A.

It's been about three years.

15

Q.

In using that certification have you ever had an

16

opportunity to, I suppose, and maybe not even using the

17

certification, but have you ever had an opportunity to

18

study and familiarize yourself with the way fire

19

travels or -- that's not even the right way to ask it,

20

but --

21

A.

No, I hear what you're saying, and yes.

22

Q.

Like, how -- how it travels, where it goes and how fast

23
24
25

it moves?
A.

That is one of the core components of that
certification.

You need to know how fire moves so that
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you can keep yourself and your team safe and so that

2

you can contain it effectively.

3

it moves or where it's going to go you cannot contain

4

the fire.

5

Q.

6

If you don't know how

And have you fought wildland forest fires since your
certification?

7

A.

Yes, sir.

8

Q.

And have those been, I suppose, prescribed burns as

9

well as naturally occurring fires?

10

A.

They have been prescribed burns and unintended burns.

11

Q.

Okay.

Yes, sorry.

Using that expertise that you have

12

in forestry management and wildland firefighting, did

13

you come to do a study or assessment, a written

14

assessment for the fire around this proposed site?

15

Well, let me ask you this, do you know where the

16

proposed site is that we've been talking about?

17

A.

Yes, I'm aware.

18

Q.

Did you, using your experience, participate in a risk

19
20

assessment of fire for the surrounding property?
A.

Yes, as the acting interim Firewise liaison officer for

21

Madison County, I did participate in all aspects of

22

this study.

23

Q.

24
25

Tell me what the liaison Firewise for Madison County
does and what they're responsible for.

A.

Sure.

Firewise -- the Firewise USA program is designed
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to teach people how to live with wildfire and increase

2

their homes' resiliency and chance of survival through

3

proactive measures.

4

with Jessica Hawkes of the Mountain Valley Resource

5

Conservation and Development Service to set up some

6

informative programs for the public before all of this

7

really came about and those programs were just designed

8

to provide free education.

9

so because I'm passionate about this topic.

And I started working this year

I volunteered my time to do
And to

10

provide information for people I created PowerPoint

11

presentations in conjunction with her and her team.

12

A.

And it was through my involvement with Mountain Valley

13

RCND that I got involved with this risk assessment

14

report to be someone who was local who could explain to

15

Sustainable Madison what the things in the report

16

actually meant.

17

Q.

And as a part of the preparation of this report what

18

would you look at for fire suppression and/or home --

19

property resiliency?

20

looking at this site and its risks to fire?

21

A.

What did you look at when you're

Oh, gosh, there's a lot of things.

Initially, one of

22

the main components is we looked at the homes that are

23

there.

24

criteria which are based off of the NFPA 14-1144, that

25

is a set of guidelines, the National Fire Protection

We went to three homes and we utilized a set of
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Act, that are based around reducing structure ignition

2

hazards from wildfires so you look at these homes and

3

you find the weak spots, whether it's materials or

4

design through which fire, wildfire, specifically could

5

gain a foothold and cause damage to that structure.

6

Q.

And when you were looking at -- what area, I guess, I

7

was going to say when you were looking but you haven't

8

said what area.

9

conducted or participated in, conducting this Firewise

10

study?

11

at?

What area were you looking at when you

What area did you, in particular, did you look

12

A.

I could show you a GIS graphic of that.

13

Q.

You could or you could come down here and just point it

14

out.

15

A.

Sure, I'll do that.

16

Q.

And I can move it closer to Mr. Sneed if you want to

17

come up here.

18

Beddingfield.

19

You can just come around here, Mr.

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

Because you're so far away from

20

the court reporter, if you'll speak up so she

21

can hear you.

22

Q.

So my question to you was, in looking at and preparing

23

a Firewise study, what area around the asphalt plant

24

did you look at?

25

A.

Mainly to the west of it.

We went this way, all the
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way to this road here and then down and this was

2

designated the Coates Road end of the area.

3

Q.

And Madam Court Reporter, he was just dictating --

4

indicating on Opposition Exhibit, I think, 2 the area

5

to the west of the asphalt plant going up to Coates

6

Road and then coming back down, I think, Highway 2570.

7

Is that what you --

8

A.

9
10

the side of the asphalt plant.
Q.

11
12

Not Highway 2570 but on the inside of it coming along

Okay.

And why, in particular, did you look at that

area?
A.

We looked at that area because that is the neighborhood

13

area that the people who requested this report

14

designated as the area of interest.

15

program is a program for property owners and landowners

16

and it is community-based.

17

small as a residential neighborhood.

18

could be an entire county or a town and it's up to that

19

community that wants to achieve Firewise status to

20

designate how large their community is.

21
22
23
24
25

Q.

The Firewise USA

The community could be as
The community

And what were your findings -- well, strike that.
Let me do this.

I'm going to hand you to what

I've marked Opposition Exhibit Number 9.
(WHEREUPON, Opposition Exhibit Number 9 was marked
for identification and passed to the witness
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2

for review)
Q.

And you described Coates Road, but look at -- it's two

3

pages.

4

you identify that for the board?

5

A.

If you can look at just the top page and can

This area is the majority, contains the majority of the

6

area that was designated as the Coates Road community

7

and the area that was studied.

8

Q.

9
10

A.

Yes.
MR. SNEED:

Q.

13
14

And that fairly and accurately represents the

area that you studied?

11
12

Yeah.

The majority of the area.

The majority of the area, that fairly and accurately
represents the majority of the area that you studied?

A.

Yes, sir.

Yeah, there's a slight area on the left side

15

of this page, the far western quadrant, which is not on

16

the page that you are showing me now but which is a

17

part of the report.

18

Q.

And what -- well, as a result of your investigation,

19

did you determine were there risk factors related to

20

fire in that area?

21

A.

Oh, yes, the report tells you exactly that information.

22

Q.

And I'm going to hand to you what I will mark as

23
24
25

Exhibit 10.
(WHEREUPON, Opposition Exhibit Number 10 was
marked for identification and passed to the
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2

witness for review)
Q.

3
4

And ask you if you can identify this, what I've marked
as Exhibit 10?

A.

Sure.

Give me a moment to look through it.

This is

5

the same document as the summary report that was sent

6

to me by the North Carolina Firewise director, Justin.

7

Q.

And did you participate in creating or, I guess,

8

providing information that created this report, in

9

creating this report?

10

A.

11
12

Oh, yes, I collected the data alongside Justin and
Jeremy.

Q.

13

And are you familiar with what data has been collected
and put into this report?

14

A.

Yes, I have it with me.

15

Q.

And does it -- yes, and it's reflected in the report?

16

A.

It is.

17

Q.

And that fairly and accurately represents the report

18
19

that was produced as a result of your risk assessment?
A.

20
21

Yes, sir, it is a summary report.

I also have a copy

if you -Q.

Oh, yes, I'll take that back.

Thank you very much.

So

22

in your report when you looked at this, can I just call

23

it the Coates Road community?

24

A.

Yes, sir.

25

Q.

What risk factors did you find?
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A.

Risk factors.

2

Q.

If that's the right term.

3

A.

Sure.

4

Some of the chief risk factors for that, there's

only one road in and out of the community.

5

Q.

And why is that a risk factor?

6

A.

Well, for emergency response vehicles, it's really easy

7

there's only one way in and out for people to get

8

trapped.

9

Q.

And so now if we go back to Exhibit 9, if you'll flip

10

that over, does that demonstrate your testimony as to

11

the -- or does it demonstrate your testimony?

12

A.

Yes, that is the bridge which we drove over to enter

13

the Coates Road community when we conducted this

14

report.

15

Q.

16
17

And the risk associated with that is what?

Tell the

board why that is a big risk factor for you.
A.

Well, honestly, I was worried about driving over it in

18

an F350 let alone a water tanker or a dozer to dig fire

19

line.

20

16 tons, as it's clearly posted.

21

truck-tractor, semi-trailer, something that's going to

22

be longer where part of the weight of the vehicle is

23

off of the bridge while part is on the bridge.

24

can have vehicles carrying water tanks which you would

25

need in this area that commonly go above that weight

This weight capacity on the bridge, I think is
It says 23 tons for
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limit.

2

on it is common enough in fighting a fire.

3

Q.

A 30-ton dozer or dozer like with water tanks

And so let me ask you a little bit, we're talking about

4

that Coates Road community, how does -- how would fire

5

travel from the proposed facility?

6

A.

7
8
9
10

Sure.

There is -MR. SNEED:

A.

There's no foundation for that.

Well, actually there's a graphic on the report that
specifically describes that, visually.
MR. GULDEN:

The foundation was set last week when

11

we had Fire Chief Allen -- Austin, come and

12

he indicated a double wall asphalt cement

13

tank catches on fire.

14
15
16

MR. SNEED:

In which he testified that the double

wall tank contained the fire.
MR. GULDEN:

The risk of fire was testified to

17

Madam Chair, so we're just asking him to

18

elaborate on an associated risk of fire.

19
20
21

MR. SNEED:

He testified that the double-wall

tank contained the fire.
MR. GULDEN:

No.

He testified that the amount of

22

fluid and foam that it took and that the

23

insulation inside the double-wall tank caught

24

fire and spilled out onto the --

25

MR. SNEED:

No.

He testified that --
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THE WITNESS:

2

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

3

If I may, Madam?
Would you repeat your original

question?

4

MR. GULDEN:

My question was the way that fire

5

would potentially spread from the proposed

6

facility and that was my question.

7

fire would potentially spread from the

8

proposed facility?

9
10

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:
A.

How a

Proceed.

The Firewise report dictates, reveals maybe is a better

11

word, it reveals how a wildfire will move across the

12

land.

13

tells you that if there is a wildfire in this area,

14

here's how it will move, how fast it will move and at

15

what intensity.

16

and use that to get more information from the report

17

which I have done, but to set it up I would like to

18

just read a moment from the report, the beginning of

19

the report.

20

It does not posit an ignition point.

It simply

Now, we can theorize an ignition point

"The Coates Road community is in a wildfire

21

environment."

22

happen - exclusion is not a choice.

23

fire scenario are when the fire will occur and where."

24
25

This is page three.

"Wildfires will
The variables in a

So if we want to theorize an ignition point to
determine the rate of spread and concern for this
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neighborhood, we can using this report.

2

into the report a little further to page, there we go,

3

page 9, you have two graphics.

4

and flame length there.

5

Q.

inappropriately.

7

spread of a fire?
A.

There is rate of spread

And so that's my question and I guess I asked it

6

8

If you move

Sure.

In this area, what is the rate of

Well, if you look at that graphic, it varies

9

depending on the terrain even within this area.

10

you look at the first document you provided me.

11

Q.

Exhibit 9 you're talking about.

12

A.

Yes, sir.

But if

And the map revealing rate of spread you can

13

see that the homes are in what we would dub the fire

14

path.

15

preferred.

16

it is most likely to experience wildfire because it is

17

hotter and drier with that southern aspect.

18

many neighborhoods in a wildland, urban interfaced

19

zone, the homes are unfortunately placed in the fire

20

path.

21

Q.

22
23

That is also the side of a range in which

And like

Did your study reveal if any homes were in a potential
fire path in this Coates Road community?

A.

24
25

Often with real estate south facing views are

Well, pretty much all of them, sir.

And the rate of

spread is there on the side of that same graphic.
Q.

And the rate of spread, tell the board what the rate of
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2

spread is, what you mean when you say that?
A.

Rate of spread is calculated in chains which is 66

3

feet, one chain is 66 feet.

And the rate of spread for

4

that fire path where the homes are located varies from

5

between 15 to 20 chains per hour to 20 to 30 chains per

6

hours to 30 to 50 chains per hour.

7

Q.

And so just in feet, because I don't do chains well.

8

A.

So I calculated the mean, the average, for all of this

9

variable rate of spread and the mean average is 22.5

10

chains per hour which equals 1,485 feet per hour.

11

Q.

And that's the rate of spread just generally.

12

A.

That is the average rate of spread.

13

It might slow down a little bit.

14

average.

15

Q.

It will speed up.

That's the consistent

And does that rate of spread and the one-lane road that

16

you testified, how many residential -- how many homes

17

does that put at risk?

18

A.

I believe it's 17, 17 homes were in the report.

19

showing 12 on this Exhibit 9, you said.

20

on Exhibit 9.

21

Q.

22
23

I'm

There are 12

And there's measures that can be taken to reduce fire
risk, isn't there?

A.

Sure.

But that does involve some expense on the

24

landowner's part.

You can preliminarily dig fire line,

25

which would be clearing the trees and shrubbery and the
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underbrush and having basically rocky, bare earth in

2

strips so that fuels cannot -- will only burn to that

3

point and then they will be contained within that

4

point.

5

Q.

And that would -- is that what a bulldozer would do in

6

its effort to -- or is it what someone using a

7

bulldozer would do in its effort to combat fire?

8

A.

9

Yes.

With intensity of a certain level.

At a certain

point and on the flame length graphic next to it in the

10

fire intensity scale after that, at a certain point

11

dozers are ineffective.

12

fire, it's going to go up and over that fire line and

13

there are areas in this community that would experience

14

that.

15

Q.

16
17

Like when you have a canopy

But if you can't even get a dozer down Coates Road
there's no way to even try to be effective?

A.

Correct.

Well, you can actually dump flame retardant

18

from an airplane on the area and that's, ultimately,

19

what it would take, but the response time on something

20

like that is not even a possibility as far as keeping

21

the people who live in that community safe because the

22

rate of spread is such that those homes closest to it

23

would have flames surrounding them in 30 minutes, 35

24

minutes, 41 minutes and there's no response time quick

25

enough that's going to be able to take care of that.
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Q.

Those would be my questions.

2

C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

3

Q.

BY MR. SNEED:

So this report recommends that the homeowners do things

4

like get vegetation away from their house.

5

what's one thing?

Is that

6

A.

That's one thing.

7

Q.

What other things does it recommend they do?

8

A.

It recommends for the siding of their house that they

9

use flame retardant materials like Hardie board versus

10

cedar shingles, make sure your gutters are clean, sweep

11

out from under your deck, don't allow leaves to

12

accumulate, preferably seal your deck underneath, make

13

sure that propane tanks, oil tanks are 50 feet or more

14

away from the house.

15

things.

16

smoky, EMS can clearly see the address.

17

places don't have clearly labeled address indicators.

18

Q.

19

There's an extensive list of

Visible house numbers so that if the area is
A lot of

So they could get a fire from any source, couldn't
they?

20

A.

Yes, sir.

21

Q.

And what makes you think that the asphalt plant is a

22
23

higher risk for fire?
A.

Well, that's not my area of expertise.

I can't

24

particularly speak to the asphalt plant.

25

tell you is how the fire will move if a fire started in
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2

the general vicinity of the asphalt plant.
Q.

If a fire started in the asphalt plant and if the

3

asphalt plant as all fuels contained in double-walled

4

insulated tanks and a catch basin around them, if the

5

fire stays on the asphalt plant it wouldn't even affect

6

this area.

7

MR. GULDEN:

Objection.

Calls for him to

8

speculate.

And misleading the witness

9

because there is no catch basin.

The

10

testimony was it was just going to be a

11

concrete pad.

12

that question.

13

MR. SNEED:

14

So I think the testimony -- go ahead

and answer the question.

15

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

16

MR. SNEED:

17

We'd object to the form of

Q.

I'm going to sustain.

Okay.

So you really don't have any evidence that there might

18

be a fire at this plant?

19

was a fire they would have these problems?

20

what you're saying?

21

A.

No.

You're just saying if there
Isn't that

What I'm saying is what is written in the report

22

itself and I will go back to it on page three.

23

Coates Road community is in a wildfire environment.

24

"Wildfires will happen - exclusion is not a choice.

25

The variables in a wildfire scenario are when the fire
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will occur and where."

2

Now, if it is more likely for there to be a fire

3

in an asphalt plant, that is not my area of expertise,

4

but if there were a fire in the proposed site, those

5

homes closest to it would be surrounded by flames in 30

6

to 40 minutes and the flames would be between eight and

7

20 feet tall based on the report.

8

Q.

In which report, this report?

9

A.

Yes, sir.

10

Q.

It doesn't say anything about this asphalt plant?

11

A.

Oh yes, it does.

If you actually go back to the other

12

pages, there is the graph below rate of spread which

13

says flame length.

14

distance between the flame tip and the midpoint of the

15

flame, not the base of the flame.

16

to 20 feet, I mean from midpoint to tip, not from where

17

it is on the ground and it goes onto to describe that

18

in very plain layman's terms.

19

Q.

20
21

Flame length is defined as the

So when I say eight

It doesn't mention the source of the fire being the
asphalt plant.

A.

It does not but it shows you where the flame length

22

would be highest which is -- it appears to be in the

23

area where the asphalt is located and it shows the rate

24

of spread from the area around that proposed site and

25

the rate of spread around that proposed site would
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carry the fire straight up Coates Road.

2

Q.

If the asphalt caused the fire.

3

A.

Or if a stray cigarette butt at the asphalt plant

4

causes a fire, sure.

5

Q.

There's nothing flammable around the asphalt plant.

6

A.

It looks like there's trees right next to it.

7

Q.

Right next to it?

8

A.

Right next to it.

9

Q.

Yes.

10

A.

Sure.

11

Q.

Show me the picture.

12

A.

This says Proposed Asphalt Site and it looks like

I can show you the picture.

13

there's trees right next to it.

14

is another landowner's property that is adjacent to

15

that site and that's why the trees aren't cleared.

16

Q.

17
18

I'm assuming that it

So you've not looked at a schematic that shows exactly
where the materials that could burn would be?

A.

No.

I've really just looked at the Firewise report and

19

am here to speak to that and how the fire will move

20

across the landscape should there be a fire in the

21

area.

22

Q.

And you can't do -- expect to do anything more than

23

speculate about a fire at the asphalt plant because

24

you've not see the layout?

25

A.

I've seen the asphalt plant site as the other gentleman
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indicated from the road and above and kind of through

2

the trees when I was doing the assessment with the

3

other forest service personnel but I have not been

4

within that area to -- or seen the schematics that are

5

planned.

6

Q.

That's all I have.

7

MR. GULDEN:

8

MR. TUZIW:

9

THE WITNESS:

10

I have nothing further.

Thank you.

I have a question.

MR. TUZIW:

Yes, sir.
Just a curiosity question, the rate of

11

spread, just to get a feel for the numbers.

12

How are these numbers in comparison to, say,

13

Gatlinburg fire?

14

THE WITNESS:

The Gatlinburg fire had a lot of

15

other factors in play.

It was started

16

intentionally with the intent to cause harm

17

in a high impact area.

18

far as rate of spread is concerned because

19

topographically and by aspect, the areas are

20

generally similar.

21

that is not true of Gatlinburg that is true

22

of this site which would increase the rate of

23

spread is the adjacency to the French Broad.

24

The wind that accompanies the river because

25

that quarry is clear and devoid of trees,

But it was similar as

One additional component
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there's no windbreak there, so if you're

2

familiar how a wood stove works, that area is

3

creating a natural draw during the day when

4

the wind and general air movement is going

5

up-slope and it is going to create a draw

6

that's going straight up Coates Road which is

7

why the rate of spread in this information

8

layer follows that path as well.

9

MR. RAMSEY:

What would happen if somebody

10

intentionally set a fire there, not on the

11

asphalt plant.

12

set a fire in the woods intentionally like

13

the Gatlinburg, what would happen?

14

would you predict happening?

15

THE WITNESS:

Sure.

Off the grounds, what if they

What

It would be quicker.

It

16

would happen a lot quicker than this mean

17

average of 22 and a half chains per hour.

18

MR. RAMSEY:

Would it have an effect on the

19

asphalt plant?

20

catching fire, would the fire have an effect

21

on the asphalt plant or would it be separated

22

and contained or is this going to affect the

23

asphalt plant, I guess you want to say.

24
25

THE WITNESS:

Not the asphalt plant

If there is a fire that's set at the

asphalt plant.

Is that what you're asking?
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MR. RAMSEY:

2

THE WITNESS:

3

plant?

4

MR. RAMSEY:

No.
Or set in the area by the asphalt

I'm saying, don't worry about the

5

asphalt plant.

6

everything in place to keep it safe.

7

not going to catch on fire.

8

THE WITNESS:

9

MR. RAMSEY:

But say they've got
It's

Sure.
But what would happen to it if

10

somebody set a fire on the land you're

11

talking about, around it, would it affect the

12

asphalt plant?

13

there and start something I guess that way?

14

THE WITNESS:

Sure.

Could it affect the fuels

Absolutely.

And the answer

15

is yes, it would affect the fuels there and

16

the area there.

17

have some of the highest flame lengths so if

18

you have a 20-plus foot length flame from its

19

midpoint to tip, I'm not sure how high

20

they're planning on having their tank, but

21

you could have flames heating it, not just

22

from within and however that works, but from

23

outside it and below and I'm not familiar

24

with what happens when you surround an

25

asphalt diesel tank with flames but just as a

That area is predicted to

Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. V
612
May 15, 2019
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

layman think it's probably not good.
MR. RAMSEY:

So could the fire get close enough to

set something on fire with the asphalt plant?
THE WITNESS:

Well, yes, because there's trees

adjacent to the proposed plant site I have.
CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

And could I add one more

question to that?

8

THE WITNESS: Sure.

9

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

What is your familiarity with

10

the Gatlinburg fire site and with reports

11

that have resulted from that?

12

THE WITNESS:

Sure.

Just talking about it with

13

other professionals that worked that fire.

14

We all sort of talked about our experiences,

15

different things we've worked on and I read a

16

lot of news articles around it and how it was

17

started, outcome of that, and the extreme

18

level of damage that occurred from it.

19

There's some similar factors at play here as

20

far as there are fire corridors.

21

avenues for the fire to move both within the

22

Coates Road community heading northeast to

23

2570 and also heading west of the proposed

24

site to the circle of land and buildings,

25

say, along the French Broad, that area is
Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

There's

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. V
613
May 15, 2019
1

predicted to have a high rate of spread

2

should the flame go west and run along the

3

river due to the increasing winds and

4

alternate fuel loads.

5

are familiar from driving along the streams

6

and rivers here how the power company when

7

they clear the power lines they don't remove

8

the fuels that they leave and a lot of our

9

power lines follow waterways which also have

10
11

I'm sure a lot of us

more wind so it's a perfect storm.
Really, this is a concern for Madison

12

County overall, but in this site specifically

13

it is -- there's a lot of like unique factors

14

about it that would increase the intensity

15

and the impact and there's no response time

16

fast enough that would protect the people who

17

choose to live there.

18

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

I guess just to make -- for my

19

comfort level, have you had an opportunity to

20

review the technical reports that the forest

21

service has developed after post-crisis,

22

post-event?

23

THE WITNESS:

Sure.

I have as like as a

24

professional sort of curiosity and growth,

25

looked at these reports, but they are not
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relevant to my work today.

2

more of a professional information-gathering,

3

curiosity and growth and talking to other

4

professionals than it has been something that

5

I've poured over deeply.

6

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

7

MR. TUZIW:

So it has been

Thank you.

I have a follow-up question in

8

relation to Ernest's question.

So should a

9

fire occur naturally or unnaturally in the

10

Coates community, the proximity of an asphalt

11

plant to it, would that increase, exacerbate

12

the likelihood of a more intense fire because

13

of the fact that what's there with the

14

asphalt plant?

15

spread, would that increase it, make it much

16

worse and then how would that affect the

17

downtown area?

18

THE WITNESS:

Sure.

And if so, that rate of

Have you ever poured diesel

19

on a fire?

Well, it explodes if it gets near

20

a flame and that causes quicker movement so a

21

larger radius area can catch.

22

how much diesel they're going to have there,

23

but if that were going to explode, the 30-

24

minute interval could become something more

25

like a ten, 12-minute interval before it's
Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

I'm not sure

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. V
615
May 15, 2019
1

around someone's home.

2

it.

3

MR. TUZIW:

It would exacerbate

So the rate of spread, would it be

4

intense enough to where the downtown area

5

would be a risk before the equipment or

6

anything could get in there to try to stop

7

that?

8
9

THE WITNESS:

Sure.

In the highest risk scenario

where the weather favors wildfire conditions

10

and where something exacerbates the fire,

11

whether accidentally or intentionally, the

12

rate of spread could be up to 50 chains per

13

hour which basically is more than double the

14

mean average that has been calculated based

15

on the report and that would mean that -- let

16

me look at what I have here -- that would

17

mean that it would hit 2570 in approximately

18

an hour going north up that fire path and

19

there could be a response by that time but

20

the flame will be of such an intensity that a

21

traditional response would not be effective.

22

You would need to have flame retardants

23

dropped from the air.

24

MR. TUZIW:

Thank you.

25

MR. SNEED:

May I follow up on some of those
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questions?

2

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

3

BY MR. SNEED:

4

Q.

5

Yes.

Now, I'm going to show you Exhibit 49 which is the
final plant layout.

6

A.

May I pull it up right here?

7

Q.

Yes.

And I'd like you to take a look at that and see,

8

it's entirely on the rock in the quarry, is it not?

9

There are no trees on there.

10

They make a provision for

a road on the north side.

11

A.

Can I ask you a question so I can clarify?

12

Q.

Sure.

13

A.

Could you look at these with me really quick?

14
15

shape which looks like this shape the same thing?
Q.

16
17

Is this

It is except there are no trees on here because it
doesn't get to the trees.

A.

18

And is that dot there that these distances are drawn
from correspond to this diesel fuel tank?

19

Q.

No.

20

A.

Is that 15,000 gallons?

21

Q.

No.

There's two fuels tanks.

Okay.

And they are at

22

least 180 feet from the trees.

And you're saying the

23

trees are going to put out 20 foot flames.

24

A.

I mean that's 15,000 gallons of diesel.

25

Q.

It's a lot of diesel.

It's 180 feet away from the
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fire.

2

A.

It'll hit those trees if it explodes, no question.

3

Q.

You're talking about a fire coming from up there on the

4
5

hill, coming down toward the asphalt plant.
A.

6

Oh, I see, so if the wind -- have you felt the heat off
of a really hot fire before?

7

Q.

Sure.

8

A.

And if you have a high wind of a particular direction

9

it pushes that heat one way or another.

So that heat,

10

if you had 20 foot tall flames on those trees and a

11

canopy fire which could be higher than 20 feet, the

12

heat coming off of that is incredibly intense and it

13

could easily heat up that tank beyond limits it is

14

meant to bear or contain.

15

from the inside in, not from the outside out.

It is meant to keep things

16

Q.

It's insulated, double-wall tank.

17

A.

Do they catch fire ever?

18

Q.

No, they can't.

19

A.

Now, if he said they couldn't that would be one thing

20

And if --

but if they can --

21

Q.

Wait a minute --

22

A.

-- it's a concern.

It could easily go that distance,

23

sir.

I mean, it's people's lives.

I am here out of a

24

sense of civic duty.

25

the -- that are the issue here for me as far as looking

It is people's lives that are on
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at this data.

2

people who live there are not going to have the time to

3

get out and emergency services are not going to have

4

the right equipment to go over that dinky bridge.

5

Q.

6

I mean, if a fire happens there the

Yeah, I'm sure you're here for a fair-minded purpose.
Thank you.

7

R E D I R E C T - E X A M I N A T I O N

BY MR. GULDEN:

8

Q.

Just one follow-up question.

9

A.

Yes, sir.

10

Q.

What do you mean by "dinky bridge"?

11

A.

Well, I was scared driving over it in a Ford 350 so by

12

dinky, I mean, that its limit is scant for what I would

13

want to have if I was responding to a fire there with

14

the kind of vehicles necessary to contain it before it

15

becomes uncontainable.

16

Q.

Those would be my questions.

17

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

18

MR. GULDEN:

19
20

Ready to move forward.

Thank you, you can come down.

need to collect my exhibits.
MR. GULDEN:

We call Lou Zeller -- well, hold on,

21

Mr. Zeller.

22

Beddingfield gets down.

23
24
25

I just

Let's wait until Mr.
Lou Zeller.

LOUIS ZELLER, being first duly
identified and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

You can sit down and if you
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would, state your name and spell, please.

2

THE WITNESS: My name is Louis Zeller, L-o-u-i-s

3

Z-e-l-l-e-r and I am the executive director

4

of the Blue Ridge Environmental and Defense

5

League.

6

D I R E C T

7

Q.

8

E X A M I N A T I O N

BY MR. GULDEN:

Did you spell your last name for Madam Court Reporter,
Mr. Zeller?

9

A.

Z-e-l-l-e-r.

10

Q.

Thank you very much.

Mr. Zeller, how long have you --

11

well, you said you worked for Blue Ridge Environmental

12

and Defense League?

13

A.

I've been at Blue Ridge since 1986.

14

Q.

So let's go back before 1986.

15
16

Tell me a little bit

about your education.
A.

I was a -- I graduated high school in 1967 and attended

17

Cooper Union School of Engineering and Science for a

18

year before I dropped out, joined the Navy four years,

19

came out and went to Emory University where I graduated

20

as a physician's assistant in 1975.

21

the Hot Springs Health Program subsequent to that.

I came to work at

22

Q.

How long did you stay here in Hot Springs?

23

A.

I worked there for several years and then an opening

24

came up with the Blue Ridge Environmental Defense

25

League because the Department of Energy was looking at
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suitable sites, they said, for a radioactive waste dump

2

which would serve as a dump site for the nation's 100

3

nuclear power stations and that site was just south of

4

my home at the time which was in Little Laurel over in

5

the Spring Creek section.

6

Q.

7
8

with Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League?
A.

9
10

And so since that time, did you say 1986, you've been

1986 I joined the staff, in 1988, two years later
became the science director.

Q.

Tell me a little bit about what you have done as part

11

of your job responsibilities and duties working for

12

Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League.

13

A.

As science director we -- I have looked at scores of

14

different industrial type facilities subsequent to the

15

nuclear waste dump case that we fought in the 1980s and

16

early 1990s.

17

incinerators.

18

Pineola, North Carolina which is in Avery County from

19

people who were suffering the effects of an asphalt

20

plant in that community.

21

consulted and advised over 80 different cases of

22

asphalt plants based on the air pollution impacts and

23

the public health impacts.

24
25

Q.

After that, it was hazardous waste
In 1996, it was we got a call from

Since that time, I have

And when you say you consulted and advised in over 80
of those, who have you consulted with and who have you
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2

advised?
A.

It has been largely, well, a mixture of groups over the

3

years.

Sometimes it is a group like Sustainable

4

Madison.

5

chapters in North Carolina and the surrounding states

6

who we work with.

7

literally across the country and even outside of the

8

country.

9

of residents in British Columbia in Canada.

We have chapters, we have several dozen

Also, we get requests from people

The most recent consultation was with a group
We get

10

calls from -- I've had people call me from South

11

Africa, from New Zealand, from Ireland and other places

12

abroad seeking information about permitting and the

13

toxic air pollution impacts primarily from asphalt

14

plants.

15

Environmental Protection Agency database on fugitive

16

emissions, for example.

17

author of their report on fugitive emissions during an

18

investigation done by the Environmental Protection

19

Agency.

20

emissions from fugitive emissions was also prompted by

21

some of my work.

22

Q.

Some of my work is recorded in United States

We published -- I was co-

Also the North Carolina's protocol for benzene

And the people that you consult with and advise, do

23

they rely upon what you tell them, the opinions you

24

give them?

25

A.

Yes.

The outcome of it has been the stopping of a
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variety of asphalt plants over the years.

2

preventing them in some cases or controlling or

3

regulating them better.

4

Q.

Either

And so you -- do you consider yourself intimately

5

familiar with the asphalt plant and these fugitive

6

emissions that you just talked about?

7

A.

We get -- on our website we get thousands of hits every

8

year from people looking for asphalt plant information,

9

yes.

And if you Google asphalt on your computer one of

10

the top sites will come up would be Blue Ridge

11

Environmental Defense League.

12

Q.

Have you published recently -- have you published any

13

articles on asphalt plants and fugitive emissions from

14

those facilities?

15

A.

I guess the most recent study was the one I did in

16

Glendale Springs about three years ago, which was a

17

computer modeling and pollution estimates for a

18

proposed plant there on the south fork of the New

19

River.

20

Q.

Tell the board a little bit about what fugitive

21

emissions are and where they -- how they're generated

22

on an asphalt plant.

23

A.

Fugitive emissions are those which -- emissions which

24

are released into the atmosphere, not through the

25

smokestack.

The smokestack, of course, has a pollution
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control device, typically a baghouse filter, a

2

fireproof filter fabric which catches some of the

3

coarser materials.

4

through that pollution control system so you have a

5

variety of fugitive emissions which occur before

6

asphalt manufacture.

7

which come from the actual manufacture of the asphalt

8

and then you have fugitive emissions which result after

9

the production of that asphalt.

Fugitive emissions do not go

You have some fugitive emissions

And the types of

10

fugitive emissions we're talking about here vary

11

according to where they're coming from.

12

it is fine particles of dust or soot or back-end

13

fugitive emissions which are actually microscopic

14

droplets in the PM10 range.

15

Q.

In some cases,

In your working with the asphalt plants over the past

16

20 years, what have you learned about risks associated

17

with fugitive emissions?

18

A.

The emissions of -- to the atmosphere include toxic

19

compounds, some of which Dr. Cloverdale was addressing.

20

Arsenic, benzene, cadmium, formaldehyde, products of

21

incomplete combustion such as polycyclic aromatic

22

hydrocarbons.

23

carcinogenic compounds, benzene is the most obvious one

24

and other compounds as well.

25

my opinion are not well regulated.

Many of these compounds contain

So fugitive emissions in
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contest with the United States EPA and, in fact, the

2

state of North Carolina Division of Air Quality going

3

back since we began working on this issue because

4

fugitive emissions are emitted too close to ground

5

level.

6

estimate or control because they are not going through

7

the smokestack and ejected high into the atmosphere.

8

They travel at treetop or below treetop level which

9

means they are not dispersed and they will waft through

For that reason, they can be difficult to

10

a tree area or a low-lying area at levels which are

11

hazardous to human health.

12

benzene; that's part of the record here.

13

looking at a phenomenon which is not well regulated

14

because it is not easy to measure.

15

There is no safe level of
So we are

One of the studies that has been most useful to us

16

is a mass balance analysis of fugitive emissions done

17

by Dr. Ravindra Nadkarni who I worked with many times.

18

Dr. Nadkarni developed a mass balance equation which

19

shows that based on the amount of asphalt produced --

20
21
22
23
24
25

MR. SNEED:
A.

This --

-- and the amount of asphalt cement added -MR. GULDEN:

Let Madam Chairperson rule on the

objection.
MR. SNEED:

He's up here testifying about what

some doctor purportedly said who I can't
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cross-examine.

2

MR. GULDEN:

Well, and I'll ask how -- I'll ask my

3

question.

4

it because -- Madam Chair, I will move on.

5

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

6

MR. GULDEN:

7

10

Pardon?

I will move on.

I'll ask another

question.

8
9

Withdraw the -- I can't withdraw

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

Thank you.

BY MR. GULDEN:
Q.

We were just asking about fugitive emissions and risks

11

associated with that.

Notwithstanding the fact that

12

you worked on this report with this one doctor, have

13

you -- in your years of working with asphalt plants,

14

have you become familiar with both batch plants and the

15

drum mix plants?

16

A.

Yes, I have.

17

Q.

And as it -- well, are you familiar with the toxins

18
19

that are released when asphalt is made?
A.

There are thousands of compounds literally emitted

20

which are part of that blue smoke which is signature of

21

asphalt plants but we're talking about thousands of

22

compounds and one of the earliest cases that we worked

23

on which was in Boone, resulted in a denial of a state

24

air pollution permit.

25

history that was denied.

The only one I know of in state
And that was because of the
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inability of the state to characterize every single

2

compound among those 2,000.

3

of information done by the United States EPA, for

4

example, there are many compounds including carbon

5

monoxide, nitrogen oxide, sulphur dioxide, particulate

6

matter, PM10, volatile organic compounds, methane,

7

benzene, formaldehyde, xylene, toluene, ethylbenzene,

8

arsenic, cadmium, mercury, lead and, of course, carbon

9

dioxide.

10

Q.

However, in the database

And I'm going to hand to you what's been introduced by

11

the applicant as part of its case-in-chief.

And are

12

these some of the -- I'm looking on Form B of the TRC

13

report.

14

released that you were just speaking of?

Are those some of the compounds that are

15

A.

Yes.

16

Q.

And are those compounds that are released that -- that

17

are shown in the TRC report, are they released by a

18

drum mix plant as well as a batch mix plant?

19

A.

That's correct.

20

Q.

And based upon your knowledge, training and experience

21

and your studies, have you found that one plant,

22

whether it be a batch mix plant or a drum mix plant,

23

pollutes less -- that's a very inartful way of saying

24

it -- but is there -- do you know whether any of these

25

plants, a batch mix plant is safer than a drum mix
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plant or is a drum mix plant safer than a batch mix

2

plant?

3

A.

No.

4

Q.

And why not?

5

A.

Because they both emit different amounts of the same

Why is one not safer than the other?

6

compounds.

In anticipation of this hearing, I took the

7

information which you just handed to me, the forms that

8

were submitted by the company, the asphalt company, to

9

the state of North Carolina.

This is a public record.

10

And based on 100,000 tons per year which they have

11

requested, and 170 tons per hour, the United States

12

Environmental Protection Agency has compiled a database

13

of emissions, air pollutant emissions, factors.

14

those emission factors for a batch mix plant or a drum

15

mix plant, there are some compounds which are higher

16

for the batch mix plant and there are some toxic

17

compounds which are higher for the drum mix asphalt

18

plant.

19

example, we have 200 percent more carbon monoxide

20

emitted by a batch plant.

21

nitrogen oxide emission by a batch plant and 1,250

22

percent more xylene emitted by a batch plant.

23

continuing with the drum mix plant, 130 percent more

24

particulate matter, PM10, is emitted from a drum mix

25

plant.

Those are the two fundamental types.

Using

So for

There is 118 percent more

However,

290 percent more volatile organic compounds are
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emitted by a drum mix plant, 39 percent more benzene,

2

190 percent more toluene, 20 percent more arsenic, 550

3

percent more mercury.

4

Q.

5

And you are looking at something, and I'm going to hand
up to you what I have marked as Opposition 11.

6

(WHEREUPON, Opposition Exhibit Number 11 was

7

marked for identification and passed to the

8

witness for review)

9

Q.

And if you can look at Opposition 11 and --

10

A.

This is exactly what I was just talking about.

It has

11

in raw numbers for the batch mix plant.

12

40,000 pounds of carbon monoxide are emitted by a batch

13

mix plant operating at 100,000 tons per year.

14

mix plant, 13,000 pounds of carbon monoxide.

15

Q.

For example,

The drum

And so does this -- what I've marked as Opposition

16

Exhibit 11, does it accurately reflect or does it

17

demonstrate the testimony you were just giving to the

18

board?

19

A.

Exactly.

20

MR. SNEED:

21

MR. GULDEN:

22

MR. SNEED:

23

Are you offering that into evidence?
I am.
I object until I get to examine him

about it.

24

MR. GULDEN:

25

MR. SNEED:

Okay.
He said he went and talked to the
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government.

2

with hearsay here or what.

3

BY MR. GULDEN:

4

Q.

No.

I don't know whether I'm dealing

You looked at the TRC report and compared the

5

pollutants that were identified in that report.

6

don't -- does that report say whether it's going to be

7

a drum mix or a batch mix plant?

8

A.

9

I

Actually, the report that was submitted by TRC, the
consultant to the Madison Asphalt Company, is a public

10

record so it was submitted to the state of North

11

Carolina.

12

Q.

13
14

And it's been identified and admitted into evidence for
this hearing.

A.

Okay.

So go ahead, finish your statement.

But in that application it is ambiguous as to

15

which kind of a plant they will operate.

16

chapter, it talks about the -- a batch mix plant in

17

terms of the regulations that it has to meet.

18

another section, in fact, it talks about a parallel

19

flow or a drum mix plant.

20

talked to state officials --

21

Q.

In one

In

So it is unclear, when I

Don't say what the state official said.

In the report

22

looking at it, you were unable to determine what type

23

of plant it was going to be?

24

A.

It is unclear on the record.

25

Q.

And based upon your knowledge and research and
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familiarity, my question to you was, is any plant, a

2

batch mix plant or a drum mix plant, more safe?

3

a poor word, safer.

That's

4

A.

No, it's a wash.

5

Q.

And you were going through explaining because based

6

upon the TRC, what they are proposing that they're

7

going to admit, you're just making a comparison as to

8

what a batch mix plant, what it meant of carbon

9

monoxide and what a drum mix plant would emit?

10

A.

Correct.

11

Q.

And so do you have an opinion as to which one is safer?

12

MR. SNEED:

13

That's

what I object to.

14

MR. GULDEN:

15

MR. SNEED:

16
17

I object to this comparison.

Okay.
This may be his data; it may not be.

I don't where this data came from.
Q.

18

Is this your -- the information that you gathered and
we put into -- strike that.

19

The information that you gathered that has been

20

put into Exhibit 11, is that information you gathered

21

from a series of sources, including the TRC report?

22

A.

The emission factors that I mentioned, the AP-42

23

specifically, was developed by the United States

24

Environmental Protection Agency.

25

foundation for air permitting and not only in North

It provides the
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2

Carolina but in all 50 states.
Q.

And so the information that you used to gather the

3

different pollutants coming from a batch mix versus a

4

drum mix, is that sufficiently reliable that everybody

5

in the United States, including TRC and the Department

6

of Environmental Quality, relies upon when they're

7

looking at pollutant levels from these types of plants?

8

A.

9

That's right.

These results are reproducible and like

I said, it is something which is done on a routine

10

basis, for example, by the Division of Air Quality.

11

The emission factors I point out that are an average.

12

So some of the pollutants, half of the plants will emit

13

more than the benchmark in the AP-42 than -- and others

14

will emit less.

15

measure to predict asphalt plant pollution or other

16

industrial types of pollution.

17

asphalt plants that the EPA does this kind of

18

mathematics.

19

before you have a plant in operation, there's nothing

20

to measure; therefore, the EPA developed the AP-42 to

21

facilitate the permitting of industrial facilities.
MR. SNEED:

23

MR. GULDEN:

25

So it is a reliable

It's not only the

But the reason that it is done because

22

24

It is an average.

(Inaudible)
I was going to ask.

Well, I was

going to ask him one question.
Q.

This TRC report is based upon nothing other than what
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you're basing your testimony upon because this asphalt

2

plant doesn't exist yet?

3

A.

That's right.

4

MR. SNEED:

5

MR. GULDEN:

Can I ask him a question?
Yes.

6

C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

7

Q.

So you're testifying, Mr. Zeller --

8

A.

I'm sorry, Mr. Sneed, I have a little bit of a hearing

9
10

BY MR. SNEED:

loss so I cannot hear you, sir.
Q.

I'm sorry.

I'm not talking loud enough.

Are you

11

telling us that this page accurately reflects what's in

12

AP-42?

13

A.

14

This page being what?
MR. GULDEN:

Exhibit 11 that you just identified.

15

A.

Exhibit 11, yes.

16

Q.

So if I go to AP-42 I will find these values for both

17
18

plants?
A.

The basis for those values, yes, you will find the

19

emission factors.

Emission factors are a

20

multiplication of the factor itself and the amount of

21

asphalt that you plan to produce, the amount of asphalt

22

product, and reduced by the pollution control device.

23

In this case, a baghouse filter.

24

at the bottom of Exhibit 11, you can see in the

25

footnote, number 5, I have listed the tables taken from

So yes, and, in fact,
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the AP-42, 11-1.2, 11-1.3, 11-1.5, et cetera.

2

find that information there, yes, sir.

3
4
5

MR. RAMSEY:

Mr. Zeller, can I ask you a question?

Can I ask him a question?
MR. GULDEN:

Yes, I don't know if he can hear you

6

though.

7

was going to ask you -

8
9

You will

MR. RAMSEY:

Mr. Zeller, one of the board members

Mr. Zeller, all this is really

confusing and it's a lot of numbers and a lot

10

of jargon between professionals that they

11

understand.

12

asphalt plant adversely affect the health and

13

be detrimental to the public in this

14

community with your opinion?

15

THE WITNESS:

Can you tell me will this

You asked me if this would affect

16

health in the region, yes.

17

--

18

MR. RAMSEY:

These pollutants

Will it adversely affect and be

19

detrimental to the health in this community

20

within that one-mile radius with that asphalt

21

plant, batch plant, drum plant, that plant.

22

THE WITNESS:

23

MR. RAMSEY:

24

THE WITNESS:

25

Yes.
Okay.

That's all I want.

Pollutants travel a mile, easily

travel a mile.
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MR. RAMSEY:

2

R E D I R E C T

3

Q.

Thank you.

E X A M I N A T I O N

BY MR. GULDEN:

Mr. Zeller, we'll move off of Opposition Exhibit 11.

4

In your experience, dealing with asphalt plants, what

5

other -- are there other factors that could be

6

detrimental to surrounding property owners outside of

7

the pollution?

8

A.

9

Well, asphalt plants are noisy machines and it's
curious that you phrased the question that way because,

10

in fact, United States Clean Air Act considers noise a

11

pollutant.

12

Q.

And how is noise a pollutant if you know?

13

A.

Noise is commonly defined as something which is

14

unpleasant and unpleasantly loud.

15

Q.

So I could be a pollutant?

(Laughter)

16

A.

You could be.

17

Q.

Does -- I suppose -- what effect does noise -- does

18

noise, if you know, does it have an effect on

19

surrounding people?

20

that can be leaving and residing in the community?

21

A.

Does it have an effect on people

What people don't understand about noise is it's not

22

just an inconvenience any more than smog is an

23

inconvenience.

24

a deleterious effect, a negative effect, on people's

25

health.

Smog kills people.

Noise can also have

The stress caused by being awakened at night
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on a routine basis can lead to stress.

2

to hypertension.

3

disease and this is well known.

4

Stress can lead

Stress can lead to cardiovascular

MR. SNEED:

I object.

He's not qualified as an

5

expert to give testimony like that and I

6

object.

7

THE WITNESS:

8

MR. SNEED:

9

I can't hear you, sir.
You're not qualified as an expert to

testify to that and I object.

10

MR. GULDEN:

We just asked him if he was aware of

11

what effects noise can have on surrounding

12

property owners.

13

MR. SNEED:

14

Then he starts giving medical

opinions.

15

MR. GULDEN:

Well, you objected to all of our

16

medical doctors giving opinions, so we'll

17

move on.

18

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

19

MR. GULDEN:

20

BY MR. GULDEN:

21

Q.

Sustained.

We'll move on.

We talked about noise, other issues.

What other

22

associated -- other associated -- I'm trying to think

23

how peculiar I asked it the last time.

24

and I can't remember.

25

with asphalt plants may have adverse effects other than

I'm curious,

What other matters associated
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2

noise and pollutants, if you're aware?
A.

Well, I would hate to have come here all this distance

3

and not share that photograph which I gave to you

4

tonight.

5

Q.

6
7

And what is this photograph that you want to show?
What's it going to show?

A.

This goes back to your earlier line of inquiry about

8

asphalt plant pollution.

9

took.

10

Q.

So let me ask you.

This is a photograph that I

What does this photograph represent

11

that I'm going to -- I'll mark as Defendant -- strike

12

that, Opposition Exhibit 12?

13

(WHEREUPON, Opposition Exhibit Number 12 was

14
15

What does this show?

marked for identification)
A.

This is a photograph of an operating asphalt plant

16

shrouded in smoke.

This is located -- this is a plant

17

which was permitted by the state of North Carolina, the

18

Division of Air Quality.

19

permitted to generate, very similar, to the one

20

proposed for -- by Madison County Asphalt, 100,000 tons

21

per year and 180 tons per hour as opposed to 170 tons

22

per hour so basically it's a very similar situation.

23

It's a mountain community located in Macon County,

24

North Carolina and we worked with residents there

25

unsuccessfully to stop the asphalt plant.

It is a plant which was
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Q.

And when you're -- does this fairly and accurately

2

represent a picture of that asphalt plant that you just

3

testified about?

4

A.

Yes.

5

Q.

And is the asphalt plant located in the picture?

6

A.

It is in there.

7

Q.

And you wanted to -- what does this picture show?

8

does it illustrate or how does it illustrate your

9

testimony?

10

A.

What

The photograph illustrates the pollution which is

11

uncontrolled or not well-controlled from a permitted

12

asphalt plant in the state of North Carolina.

13

states goes through the regulations, submits

14

information and develops a permit.

15

plainly leave to counties or municipal governments

16

where asphalt plants may go and where they may not.

17

Sometimes it results in setbacks.

18

were no setbacks.

19

or 2,000 feet of that plant.

20

Q.

21
22

25

The state will

In this case, there

People are living within 1,000 feet

And this plant produced how much asphalt per year, how
much per hour?

A.

23
24

The

100,000 tons per year, 180 tons per hour.

We did a

study -Q.

Let me ask you this.

Do you know whether that plant is

-- is it run off of natural gas or diesel fuel?
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A.

Diesel.

2

MR. RAMSEY:

3

plant?

4
5

Is that a batch plant or a drum

THE WITNESS:
A.

That's s drum plant.

We did a study in this community after the plant opened

6

out to half-mile radius from the plant and people said

7

that --

8

MR. SNEED:

9

MR. GULDEN:

10

Objection.
Object, if you -- sorry, I didn't

mean to object.

11

BY MR. GULDEN:

12

Q.

Don't say what people said.

13

A.

How do I present the results of the study that --

14

Q.

Did you participate in the study?

15

A.

Yeah.

16

Q.

Did you conduct the study?

17

A.

I did the study.

18

Q.

What was the study determined -- what was the study --

19
20

why was the study conducted and what were its findings?
A.

21
22

25

The findings were that there were -MR. SNEED:

A.

23
24

I went door-to-door.

-- increased health impacts -MR. GULDEN:

A.

Objection.

Well --

-- after a two-year period -MR. GULDEN:

-- he objected.
Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. V
639
May 15, 2019
1

A.

-- of operation.

2

MR. GULDEN:

-- he objected.

And we strike that

3

from the record since he did object.

4

Chair, my question was, what was the intent

5

of that study?

6

Q.

Go ahead, I don't know that he objected to that.

7

MR. SNEED:

8

MR. GULDEN:

9

there.

What was the intent?
Of that study that he conducted up

10

A.

What's the question?

11

Q.

It's getting late and I apologize.

12
13

Madam

What was the intent

of that study?
A.

To determine the before and after health in the

14

community within a half a mile of an operating asphalt

15

plant.

16

Q.

And you conducted that study?

17

A.

Yes.

18

Q.

And you compared its data that you gathered?

19

A.

Yes.

20

Q.

For that plant in that area, what were the results of

21

that study that you conducted?

22

MR. SNEED:

23
24
25

I want to know what the data was

first.
Q.

I think it's a bunch of hearsay.

What was the data?

How did you -- what information did

you gather?
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A.

There were increased levels of hypertension and other

2

negative health impacts, asthma, after the plant

3

opened.

4

MR. SNEED:

And I need to ask a question about

5

this opinion because I move to strike unless

6

I get something clear.

7

R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

8

Q.

9
10

BY MR. SNEED:

What you did was, you sent certain questionnaires out
to people and they answered the questionnaire?

A.

No, sir.

We developed a survey instrument working with

11

experts in the field and a medical doctor to develop a

12

survey instrument and then we went door-to-door.

13

were a few that were done by mail.

There

14

Q.

But they were surveys, right?

15

A.

Correct.

16

Q.

And you made no comparison between the general health

Health survey.

17

of the population around there, not at the asphalt

18

plant, but the general Appalachian population around

19

there to compare whether or not the answers they gave

20

you were different than might have been obtained from

21

other people not around the asphalt plant?

22

A.

23

I don't know why -- your question doesn't make any
sense.

24

F U R T H E R

25

Q.

I'm sorry.
E X A M I N A T I O N

BY MR. GULDEN:

Did you use a control group to prepare your data?
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A.

2

There's no such thing as a control group in a health
survey.

3

MR. SNEED:

4

MR. GULDEN:

I object to the entry of his study.
He didn't enter his study.

He's just

5

testifying to the study and the results that

6

he found in May.

7

MR. SNEED:

I object to the testimony about the

8

results of the study that has no control

9

group to compare it against.

10

THE WITNESS:

I might say, Mr. Sneed, that your

11

area of expertise in the law may be very

12

good, but in terms of the health survey, this

13

is a common tool used in epidemiology.

14
15

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:
Q.

Overruled.

Those are my --

16

MR. RAMSEY:

17

board.

18

a batch or a drum plant?

19

MR. SNEED:

20

MR. RAMSEY:

21

MR. SNEED:

Mr. Sneed, just to clarify for the
The plant that's proposed to go in is

Drum.
And that is a drum or a batch plant?
That is a drum.

And that is a plant

22

that's operating in violation of its permit

23

too.

24
25

MR. GULDEN:

We'll object to Mr. Sneed testifying.

I mean I suppose on cross-examination you can
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ask Mr. Zeller that question.

2

my questions.

3

F U R T H E R

4

Q.

E X A M I N A T I O N

Those would be

BY MR. SNEED:

That is my question, Mr. Zeller.

That plant is in

5

violation of the permit the day you took the picture,

6

wasn't it?

7

A.

That plant in the photograph as you point out, is

8

operating in violation of its permit.

This complaint

9

was made to the Division of Air Quality.

The state

10

health director came and did an investigation.

11

secretary of the Department of Environment and Natural

12

Resources was called at that time.

13

for a period of time and about five or six months later

14

it was reopened with the same permit under the same

15

circumstances.

16

Q.

17

The

Closed the plant

There were no differences.

Do you have any reason to believe that these clients of
mine would operate in violation of their permit?

18

MR. GULDEN:

19

I'm going to object to that.

Calls

for speculation.

20

MR. SNEED:

21

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

22

I don't think we had any evidence.
We're not going to allow the

photo into -- as an exhibit.

23

MR. GULDEN:

24

BY MR. SNEED:

25

Q.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Mr. Zeller, Blue Ridge and Environmental Defense League
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is a 501(c)(3) organization, is it not?

2

A.

Correct.

3

Q.

And when you get with your chapters, they go out and

4

raise money and use your exemption and give you the

5

money?

6
7

MR. GULDEN:
Q.

Isn't that what happens?

8

MR. GULDEN:

9

MR. SNEED:

10

Q.

Well, objection to the relevancy.

Well, object to the relevancy.
You'll see.

Isn't that what happens?

11

MR. GULDEN:

Objection.

12

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

Overruled.

Continue.

13

A.

Your question please.

14

Q.

These chapters raise money, use your 501(c)(3)

15

exemption and then give Blue Ridge Environmental

16

Defense League the money?

17

A.

No, that's not correct.

You don't know our

18

organization clearly.

A 501(c)(3) is established for

19

the purpose of public education and donations to the

20

corporation, to the 501(c)(3) corporation, are

21

explicitly given without any quid pro quo, without any

22

services or goods provided.

23

Q.

So it is given to the corporation?

24

A.

I'm sorry, I can't hear you, sir.

25

Q.

It is given to the corporation?
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A.

Monies from private foundations and individual donors

2

are given to the corporation.

3

give me $20 for membership and we will send you a news

4

letter.

5

Q.

6

For example, you might

And the money that was raised for the defense in this
case was raised through Blue Ridge?

7

MR. GULDEN:

Objection.

Not relevant to the

8

asphalt plant and its effect on health,

9

safety, persons residing in the neighborhood,

10

detrimental to public welfare and property

11

and public improvements.

12

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

Overruled.

I'm sorry.

13

an objection.

14

many back and forths, sorry.

15

A.

16

Sustained, I'm sorry.

MR. GULDEN:

The objection was sustained.

Please

don't answer.

18

THE WITNESS:

Sorry, I didn't hear.

19

BY MR. SNEED:

20

Q.

So what is a chapter?

21

A.

A chapter is a sub-group of the corporation.

22

Q.

Are they members?

23

A.

They are members.

25

Too

Our chapters do not give --

17

24

You made

They do not give money to the

corporation -MR. GULDEN:

Mr. Zeller, if he doesn't ask a
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question, please don't answer a non-asked

2

question.

3

from the record.

4

BY MR. SNEED:

5

Q.

I'll object to that, strike that

And if I understand your testimony about fugitive

6

emissions, that's dust from when the loader picks up

7

the gravel and puts it in the drum or dust from the

8

tires of trucks driving through the site, is that

9

right?

10

A.

Fugitive emissions result from before, during and after

11

the operations, yeah.

12

include dust from the tires.

13

gassing of hazardous pollutants when the truck is

14

loaded.

15

truck load-out into the truck itself, so there is at

16

375 degrees and 350 degrees, you see pollution being

17

emitted from the trucks as well.

18

Q.

19
20

So you've got truck emissions
It also includes off-

When it is loaded from the asphalt silo to the

And pollution from the trucks is what, the truck
exhaust or from the truck gassing of the asphalt?

A.

Fugitive emissions are admitted largely from the

21

asphalt plant itself.

There are conveyor belts, gaps

22

in machinery, places where the asphalt is loaded out

23

from the drum mixer after it has been mixed with the

24

asphalt cement into a hopper where it is stored or

25

transferred to the storage silo.

So those are all
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1
2

fugitive emissions which are hazardous.
Q.

And the particulate matter that's coming out is

3

fugitive emissions is the dust that's kicked up by

4

wheels, loaders, is that right?

5

A.

That's a small fraction of it.

6

Q.

Where's the rest of it come from?

7

A.

From the asphalt plant itself.

8

Q.

Particulate?

9

A.

Particulate matter and products of incomplete

10

combustion such as formaldehyde, benzene --

11

Q.

But that --

12

A.

-- polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons.

13

Q.

That's not considered fugitive emissions, right?

14

A.

Yes, it is.

15

Q.

Oh, after it goes to the baghouse, that's fugitive

16
17

emissions?
A.

No, sir.

If it goes through the baghouse filter and is

18

emitted through the smokestack, that is not fugitive.

19

That's what I said in the beginning.

20

basic areas where you've got smokestack emissions

21

coming into the smokestack ever how high it is, 50 feet

22

or more, ejected up into the atmosphere to get

23

dispersion.

24

pollution control system and stay at ground level.

25

That's largely what you see that photograph.

There are two

Fugitive emissions do not go through the
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1

Q.

2
3

That photograph -MR. GULDEN:

A.

That photo was admitted, sorry.

That is largely what is emitted from an asphalt plant

4

is both the fugitive emissions and the smokestack

5

emissions.

6

Q.

They're both very large.

That's all I have.

7

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

8

MR. GULDEN:

9

CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

10
11
12

MR. GULDEN:

Does the board have questions?

Nothing further.
It's four minutes to 9:30.

I do not have a witness I can examine

in four minutes.
CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:

What we need to do is before

13

folks leave, determine the next time that we

14

are going to meet.

15

(WHEREUPON, this proceeding on May 15, 2019, was

16

concluded at 9:26 P.M.; to be continued on

17

May 16, 2019)

18

* * * * * * * * * *

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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